
1 

REVISED 
GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, APRIL 18, 2022 
 
At least one of the city councilmembers may attend the meeting remotely. Citizens can view the meeting in 
person at City Hall, or remotely using the link below.  The meeting will be streamed live on the City's Facebook 
and YouTube pages at https://www.goldsboronc.gov/mayor-of-goldsboro/city-council-minutes/. 
 
 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
         

1. ROLL CALL   
 
2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   

 
3. OLD BUSINESS 

a. 309 Walnut Street Sewer Issue (Zachary E. Lilly) 
b. NPO Support Process (Mayor)  
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
c. Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni and Friends Homecoming Support Request  
 

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
Invocation (Rev. David Elliott, St. James AME Zion Church)  
Pledge of Allegiance  

 
III. ROLL CALL   

 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of April 4, 2022 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS  
B. Employee Performance Awards (City Manager) 
C. National Volunteer Appreciation Week Proclamation  
D. Community College Month Proclamation 
E. Fair Housing Month Proclamation   
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING 
F. SU-2-22 William Wooten – (Outdoor Storage) E. side of N. George Street between Holly and Vine Streets 

(Planning) 
G. SU-3-22 Gregory Sakas– (Retail Sales) North side of E. US 70 HWY. between Millers Chapel Rd. and E. 

Ash St. Extension (Planning)  
H. Z-5-22 WithersRavenel – N. Oak Forest Rd. between Central Heights Rd. and Gateway Dr. and located 

primarily in the City’s one-mile ETJ (Planning) 
PLANNING COMMISSION EXCUSED 
I. Public Hearing to Ratify the Actions Taken Regarding an Agreement with Wayne County and the Wayne 

County Development Alliance (City Manager)  
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
J. Contiguous Annexation Petition – Magnolia Grove – Located on the east side of Eleventh St. between 

Norwood Ave. and Englewood Dr. (Planning)  
K. Authorization of sale of jointly owned property for 209 and 213 N. Georgia Avenue (2 lots) (Coe) (Finance)  
L. Grant Project Budget Amendment for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment 

Partnership Program Special Revenue Fund (C2101) (Finance)  

https://www.goldsboronc.gov/mayor-of-goldsboro/city-council-minutes/


 

2 

M. Annual Operating Budget Amendment FY21-22 (Finance) 
N. Resolution to Withdraw 211 S. Slocumb Street (Finance)  
O. Downtown Development Department Office Lease Agreement (Downtown)  
P. Approval of Resolutions to Request Funding through State Grants (American Rescue Plan Act – ARPA) 

(Engineering) 
Q. Contract Award for Consulting Services – HOME-ARP (Community Relations)  
R. Center Street Jam Concert Series – Temporary Street Closure (Police) 
S. Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni Parade – Temporary Street Closure (Police) 
T. Jamz Out Juneteenth – Temporary Street Closure (Police)  
U. NC Freedom Fest – Temporary Street Closure (Police)  
V. Wayco Center Street Takeover – Temporary Street Closure (Police) 
W. Wayne County Crime Stoppers Caper Chase – Temporary Street Closing (Police) 
X. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION   
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
APRIL 4, 2022 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on April 4, 2022.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones (participating via Zoom) 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Gene Aycock  

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilwoman Jones requested adding Sponsorship of Dillard Alumni to the 
agenda. Councilwoman Matthews requested the addition of a Reentry Month Proclamation to the agenda. Councilman 
Aycock requested moving Item F, Z-3-22 to Items Requiring Individual Action. City Manager Salmon requested the 
removal of Item H from the agenda.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack requested moving Item E, Z-2-22 to Items Requiring 
Individual Action. Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilman Aycock and unanimously 
carried, Council adopted the agenda. A roll call vote was held.  

Old Business. 
NPO Support Discussion. Mayor Ham discussed the nonprofit support request process. He proposed that 

council defer the actual dollar figure to a later time due to staff not having sufficient information at the time to 
determine what is available to allocate to non-profits.  At the last meeting, it was suggested to use an outside 
organization to distribute the money after they vetted the applicants. This process wasn’t acceptable to the majority of 
the council.  Mayor Ham suggested the formation of a vetting committee to include one representative from each 
district as well as a mayor appointee. This committee would establish the criteria for vetting and awarding the monies 
to the applicants. Mayor Pro Tem Polack was in favor of having a representative from each district. Councilwoman 
Jones made a motion to develop a committee with representation of each district to vet the nonprofits with an at large 
position. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor. Councilwoman Matthews stated the decision needed to 
stay with the Council.  Councilwoman Jones shared that she was referring to representation from the council. 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to develop a committee consisting of each city council person, representative of 
each city council person to vet the NPO. Council discussed the non-profits and holding a special meeting to vet the 
NPO’s. Council will continue to vet the NPO’s. Mayor Ham shared they need to come up with criteria to select, 
qualify and fund organizations. The Mayor will begin to formulate the process of qualifications before a special 
meeting is held and requested that Council submit any suggestions.  The original motion was withdrawn by 
Councilwoman Jones. 

GWTA Board Vacancy Discussion. Council discussed the GWTA board. Councilman Broadaway made a 
motion to appoint Ms. Carter, Ms. Jones and Mr. Aycock back to their December timeframe for their appointment, that 
we reappoint to those time frames. Councilman Aycock seconded the motion. The mayor called for discussion. 
Councilwoman Matthews shared concerns regarding the application process for the GWTA board and suggested that 
council set a standard for employees and/or councilmembers that leave the city.   

Councilwoman Jones made a motion to appoint Shycole Simpson-Carter to the GWTA board through 12-19-22.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Aycock. After a roll call vote was held, Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, 
Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor and Councilman Aycock voted for the motion. 
Councilwoman Matthews voted against the motion. The motion passed 6:1. 

Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to appoint Councilman Aycock and Councilwoman Jones to a term beginning 
April 5, 2022 through 12-31-22.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Aycock and a roll call vote resulted in all 
members voting in favor of the motion. 

New Business.  
Non-Resident Fees. Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director shared the following presentation: 

Item A



2 
 

  

  

  

 
 
Council discussed the recreation fees with Mrs. Brown. The current fee is $45.00. Council discussed hardships. Mayor 
Pro Tem Polack discussed the Patrick Best track. Mayor Ham also discussed the fields at the Multi-Sports Complex. 
Mayor Ham and City Manager Salmon will present the information to the county for a response and come back to the 
next meeting with a follow up. 
 

Dillard Alumni Sponsorship. Councilwoman Jones spoke about the Dillard Alumni and shared they are 
requesting a sponsorship and funding for their event in May. Mayor Pro Tem Polack shared comments and gave his 
support. Councilwoman Jones shared that Mr. Packer will be at the 7:00 pm meeting to present the request.  

 
Consent Agenda Review.  Each item was reviewed. Additional discussion included the following:   

Item E. Z-2-22 Eastern Hill, Inc. – South side of E. Elm Street between Crawford St. and Beale St. and 
within the corporate City limits. Although the item was moved to Items Requiring Individual Action, Kenny Talton, 
Planning Director discussed the item. Mr. Talton shared that there was a typo on page two of the zoning request. Page 
two references the change from residential to general business but should reflect residential to neighborhood business. 
Council discussed the item.  

 
Item I. Municipal Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation for Inspection of 

Bridges on the Municipal Street System. Council discussed removing Retha Street over Big Ditch from the list due 
to the area potentially being vacant. Mr. Bobby Croom, Engineering Director will review the area and remove the 
Retha Street bridge from the list if needed.  

 
 
 



3 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City 

Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on April 4, 2022. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones (participating via Zoom) 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Gene Aycock  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

 
Pastor Stanley Kelly with Fellowship Baptist Church provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 

  
Approval of Minutes.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 

Regular Meeting of March 7, 2022 and the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of March 21, 2022. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Aycock and unanimously carried after a roll call vote was held.   

 
Presentations. 
Homefront Room Revival Presentation.  Katelyn Tinsley shared the following presentation:  

 

  

  

  



4 
 

  
 
Mrs. Tinsley shared a video, which can be viewed on the SJAFB Facebook page and discussed the Homefront Room 
Revival. They are located in the New Connections Center on Seymour Johnson AFB. Mayor Ham spoke about the 
program. Mrs. Tinsley stated that donations are welcome. 

 
Month of the Military Child Proclamation. Read by Councilman Broadaway, Mayor Ham proclaimed April 

2022 as the MONTH OF THE MILITARY CHILD and April 8th as Purple Up Day for Wayne County Public Schools. 
He encouraged all school personnel and City of Goldsboro residents to recognize the contributions of our military 
families and to celebrate the spirit of military children across our city and nation by wearing purple on April 8th as an 
outward symbol of appreciation for our youngest heroes.  

 
Re-Entry Month Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Matthews, Mayor Ham proclaimed April as Re-Entry 

Month in Goldsboro, North Carolina and encouraged residents to observe this month and recognize the efforts of those 
who work to improve rehabilitation and reintegration of formerly incarcerated individuals. Councilwoman Matthews 
presented the proclamation to Ms. Renita Dawson, member of the Wayne County Reentry Council.  
 

Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Willie Baptiste, 1403 E. Elm Street shared concerns regarding traffic lights. He shared comments 
regarding the property on 1402 Lemmon Street. He shared comments regarding his appointment to the 
Golf Course Committee. He also shared comments regarding a police issue.  

2. Gary Packer, National President of the Goldsboro Alumni and Friends, Inc. requested $10,000 for the 
67th Annual Dillard Alumni homecoming event. He stated that the event is a four-day event, every City 
venue and hotel is full during the event. He shared the financial impact is on low side of $3.8 or $4 
million dollars every year they have their presentation.     

3. Sherwood Williford shared comments regarding an article concerning Goldsboro native, Ruth 
Whitehead Whaley.  He stated a historical marker for Ms. Ruth Whitehead Whaley has been approved 
by Raleigh and will be installed in mid-May.  

4. Al Strickland, 1009 Corbett Street, shared comments and concerns regarding agenda item Z-3-22. He 
requested that Council not remove the single-family home designation off the zoning. 

5. Henry Battle, 312, 314, 316 S. James Street, shared comments regarding a recent property that was sold 
by the city for $1.00 when the city is raising the utility rates 20%. He shared concerns about properties 
on Virginia Street and that the city should auction the properties off.   

6. Trey Taylor, attorney with Warren, Kerr, Walston, Taylor and Smith, shared he is here for the property 
owner, Land Branch Development. He shared comments regarding item Z-3-22.  He shared the use 
would be 107 townhomes and made comments regarding the proposed townhomes and the property 
owners.  

7. Jennifer Scott, representing RBV Investments, shared comments regarding the rezoning item Z-3-22. 
8. Craig Daughtery shared comments and concerns regarding item Z-3-22 and property values of their 

homes.  
 

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  

All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call 
vote. Item E, Z-2-22 Eastern Hill, Inc. – South side of E. Elm Street between Crawford St. and Beale St. and within the 
corporate City limits and Item F, Z-3-22 RBV Investments, LLC. – North side of E. US 70 Hwy. between Corbett St. 
and N. Oak Forest Dr. and located in the corporate City limits were moved to Items Requiring Individual Action 
during the adoption of the agenda. Item H, Contract Extension for Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority 
(GWTA) Marketing and Public Relations Services with Quest Corporation of America, Inc. was removed from the 
agenda during the adoption of the agenda. Mayor Pro Tem Polack moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items D, 
G, I, J and K be approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Broadaway and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 



5 
 

 Z-1-22 Angelita Morrisroe – East of N. William Street between Wilson St. and E. US 70 Hwy. service 
road and within the corporate City limits. Ordinance Adopted. The applicant is requesting a change of zone from 
Residential (R6) to General Business (GB) for two (2) private lots which are of continuous frontage and under single 
ownership within the Residential (R6) zoning district. 
  
If approved, the owner will be required to recombine the lots into one for commercial development purposes meeting 
the requirements of the General Business (GB) zoning district.   
 

Frontage: 92 ft. (Wilson St.) 
  90 ft. (E. Hwy. 70 SR)  
Area:  18,030 sq. ft. or 0.41 acres 
North:   Residential (R-6) 
East:  Residential (R-6) 
West:  General Business (GBCZ) 

 
One of the two private lots is currently vacant.  The other lot is occupied by a single-family dwelling. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan (CLUP) recommends High-Density Residential development for the property. 
 
Although the (CLUP) recommends High Density Residential Development, the requested change of zone would be 
compatible with existing commercial zoning and uses in proximity to the site.   
 
City water and sewer are available to serve the property.  The subject property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard 
Area.  Grading and drainage plans may be required. 
  
At the public hearing held March 21, 2022, no one spoke in favor of or against the request.  
 
On Monday, March 28, 2022, the Goldsboro Planning Commission recommended approval of the change of zone 
request from Residential (R6) to General Business (GB). 
 
Although the Planning Commission’s recommendation is inconsistent with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
(CLUP), the request would be compatible, and therefore, reasonable with existing commercial zoning and uses in 
proximity to the site.  
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and; 
 

1. Find the proposed zoning amendment inconsistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
however, the request would be compatible, and therefore, reasonable with existing commercial zoning and 
uses in proximity to the site. 

2. Find the proposed zoning amendment would be in the public interest because the zoning would allow uses 
that are compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding areas and; 

3. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Residential (R6) to General Business (GB). 
       Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

  
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-9 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP, COMPREHENSIVE LAND-USE 
MAP AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 
 Z-4-22 KRP Investments, LLC. – East side of Wayne Memorial Dr. between Fourth St. and Gracie Pl. 
and located in the corporate City limits. Ordinance Adopted. The applicant is requesting a change of zone for a 
portion of the subject property (approximately 3 acres) from Office and Institutional (O & I-1) to Residential (R-6CZ) 
Conditional Zoning district limiting the use of the property to a three (3) story multi-family development complex 
consisting of sixty-three (63) units for individuals fifty-five (55) years of age and older.  Remaining acreage will be 
reserved for future development. 
 
According to the City’s UDO, the proposed development shall meet the Multi-Family and Townhome development 
design standards of the R-6 zoning district. 
      

Frontage: +40.8 ft. (Fourth St.)  
Area:  631,620 sq. ft. or 14.5 acres 
North:   Office and Institutional (O &I-1) 
South:  Office and Institutional (O & I-1), Residential (R-9), Neighborhood Business (NB) 
East:  Residential (R-9) 
West:  Residential (R-9)/Office and Institutional (O & I-1) 

 
The property currently consists of agricultural farmland and woodlands.   
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Office and Institutional development. Multi-family developments are a 
permitted use in the Office and Institutional (O & I-1) zoning district and must meet the development requirements of 



6 
 

the closest, most restrictive zoning district.  According to the City’s Land Use Plan, higher residential densities are 
recommended and should be encouraged since City water and sewer are available to serve the property. 
 
The submitted preliminary site plan indicates one, three-story apartment building containing a total of 63 units.   
 
Access to the site will be directly from the E. Fourth Street terminus.  The applicant intends to construct and formally 
dedicate a public road built to City standards approximately 800 ft. eastward to the site and incorporate into the City’s 
street network.  
 
Parking for the site requires two spaces per unit for 1 and 2 BR apartments.  24 of the 63 total units will be 1-bedroom 
units and 39 will be 2-bedroom units.  A total of 126 parking spaces are required and only 71 spaces have been shown 
on the preliminary site plan. Staff is working with developer to meet the City’s commercial parking ordinance.  
 
A common area equal to twenty percent (20%) of the entire development (excluding rights-of-way) shall be preserved, 
maintained and improved by the development owner for active recreational use by residents of the development.  The 
required open space shall be held in common ownership, for the perpetual benefit of residents of the development, by a 
legally established corporation, association or other legal entity, or be dedicated to the City of Goldsboro as a public 
park.  Staff is working with the developer to ensure compliance with this requirement. 
 
External City sidewalks are required and are not shown for the proposed development.  Staff is working with the 
developer to meet this requirement. 
Internal concrete sidewalks are shown providing access to building entrances through sloped ramps and handicap 
accessible walkways. 
 
A commercial lighting plan has not been submitted.  Since the subject property is located adjacent to residentially-
zoned and developed properties, the developer will be required to submit a lighting plan in compliance with the City’s 
Commercial Lighting ordinance. 
 
Subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  As such, City water and sewer are available to serve 
the property.  The property is not located within a special flood hazard area.  City Engineering will require approval of 
storm water calculations and drainage plans prior to issuance of any building permits.           
 
Street trees have been provided along the private access drive leading to the senior living facility.  A Type B 15 ft. 
wide landscape buffer is required along all property lines with the exception of the eastern property line which will 
require a Type A 10 ft. wide buffer yard.  Vehicular surface area landscape requirements must be met.  Staff is 
working with the applicant to ensure landscape requirements are met per the requirements of the City’s Unified 
Development Ordinance. 
 
Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are properly 
constructed and appropriately screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   
 
Building elevations been submitted. Roofing will consist of architectural shingles.  Wall siding will consist of fiber 
cement cedar shakes, decorative brackets and brick-veneer.  
Staff will ensure all multi-family development design standards are met per the requirements of the City’s Unified 
Development Ordinance prior to issuance of any building permits.   
 
According to the City’s Land Use Plan, higher residential densities are recommended and should be encouraged since 
City water and sewer are available to serve the property. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Office and Institutional development. Multi-family developments are a 
permitted use in commercially-zoned districts such as General Business (GB), Office and Institutional (O & I-1), 
Neighborhood Business (NB), Shopping Center (SC), and Highway Business (HB) and must meet the development 
requirements of the closest, most restrictive residential zoning district.   
 
At the public hearing held March 21, 2022, no one spoke in favor of or against the proposal. 
 
On Monday, March 28, 2022, the Goldsboro Planning Commission recommended approval of the change of zone 
request for a portion of the subject property (approximately 3 acres) from Office and Institutional (O & I-1) to 
Residential (R-6CZ) Conditional Zoning district limiting the use of the property to a three (3) story multi-family 
development complex consisting of sixty-three (63) units for individuals fifty-five (55) years of age and older.  
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and; 
 

1. Find the proposed zoning amendment consistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
2. Find the proposed zoning amendment reasonable and in the public interest because the proposed zoning 

would allow for infill and multi-family development which is compatible with existing properties in the 
surrounding area. 



7 
 

3. Find that City water and sewer are available to serve the property and that higher residential densities 
should be encouraged and considered for the site. 

4. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property for a portion of the subject property 
(approximately 3 acres) from Office and Institutional (O & I-1) to Residential (R-6CZ) Conditional 
Zoning district limiting the use of the property to a three (3) story multi-family development complex 
consisting of sixty-three (63) units for individuals fifty-five (55) years of age and older. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-10  “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP, COMPREHENSIVE LAND-USE 
MAP AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Municipal Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation for Inspection of Bridges 
on the Municipal Street System. Resolution Adopted. The Surface Transportation Assistance Act of 1978 requires 
that all bridges open for public use must be inspected on an interval not to exceed two years. The bridges on the 
municipal street system in Goldsboro were last inspected in 2020.  Thus, they are due to be reinspected during 2022. 

 
With the inspections, the City at its option may: (1) inspect the bridges with its own staff; (2) employ a consultant firm 
to accomplish the inspections; or (3) have the Department of Transportation (DOT) or a consultant employed by DOT 
to make the inspections. Should the City elect either (1) or (2), the DOT will reimburse the City the 80% federal-aid 
share of the cost.  Should the City elect (3), DOT will bill the City for the 20% local share of the cost upon completion 
of the work.  Under any of the three options, no work can be done until a municipal/state agreement is properly 
executed by both the City Council and the Department of Transportation. 

 
Goldsboro’s City bridges are as follows: 

1. Best Street over Long Branch 
2. Harris Street over Long Branch 
3. Berry Street over Long Branch 
4. Wayne Avenue over Big Ditch 
5. Retha Street over Big Ditch 
6. Slocumb Street over Stoney Creek 

 
DOT anticipates the inspections to cost the City of Goldsboro approximately $650 per structure for a total estimate of 
$3,900. The actual cost is based on the work being performed, therefore the final invoice amount will not be known 
until the work is complete. 
 
The Engineering Department does not have a licensed Bridge Inspector. The proposed FY2022-23 budget includes 
funds to meet this financial responsibility. 
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign 
an agreement with the N. C. Department of Transportation for the inspection of bridges on the municipal street system. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-32 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE INSPECTION OF BRIDGES ON THE MUNICIPAL STREET 
SYSTEM” 

 
Professional Engineering On-Call Services to conduct a study for Utility Merger/Regionalization 

Feasibility (MRF). Resolution Adopted. CDM Smith, Inc., WithersRavenel, and The Wooten were selected for on-
call engineering services for various engineering projects relating to Water Treatment & Distribution, Wastewater 
Treatment & Distribution, Stormwater, Transportation, and Construction Inspection. 

 
Staff requested CDM Smith, Inc. provide costs in reference to conducting a study for Utility Merger/Regionalization 
Feasibility (MRF) pertaining to the City of Goldsboro, Wayne County, Town of Pikeville, Town of Eureka, Town of 
Fremont, and Town of Mount Olive. 

  
CDM Smith engineering services detailed as follows: 

 
• Data Collection and Data Review    
• Identify Top 3 Alternatives for Analysis   
• Alternatives Feasibility and Financial Analysis  
• Prepare Report and Meeting to Review Comments 
• Project Management and Administration 
 
Total Costs Not To Exceed=   $100,000      
  

We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined that funds are available from 
a grant from the NC Department of Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure. 

 



8 
 

It was recommend that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Professional Engineering Services Agreement with CDM Smith, Inc. pertaining to conducting a MRF Study for an 
amount not to exceed $100,000.  Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-33 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CDM SMITH, INC. FOR UTILITY MERGER/REGIONALIZATION FEASIBILITY 
(MRF) STUDY” 

 
Approve PO for Computer Replacement Plan. Approved. The City Council approved the expenditure in the 

current fiscal year budget. In December 2021, Council approved the financing for our replacement plan to replace staff 
computers for the City of Goldsboro.  

 
G.S. 143-129 requires formal bidding when the estimated expenditure of public money is greater than $90,000 for 
apparatus, supplies, materials or equipment, and further requires that the governing body must award the contract.  The 
statute allows the governing body to delegate the authority to award contracts, reject bids, or readvertise bids on behalf 
of the unit to the manager or other employee. City Council authorized the City Manager or the Finance Director this 
authority on April 19, 2021 in RES 2021-30.   

 
The procurement of the IT equipment was done through State Contract as allowed by law.  As per internal 
memorandum dated April 19, 2021, the City Manager and Finance Director stipulate that the delegated authority limit 
is $250,000, and contracts over this amount shall be presented to City Council for approval and award.  The purchase 
order amount is $510,931.15 to Netcom Business Solutions, Inc. 

 
It was recommended that Council authorize the award of IT equipment to Netcom Business Solutions, Inc. in the 
amount of $510,931.15 as documented on P2200827. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 
 

End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Z-2-22 Eastern Hill, Inc. – South side of E. Elm Street between Crawford St. and Beale St. and within the 

corporate City limits. Ordinance Adopted. The applicant is requesting a change of zone from Residential (R6) to 
General Business (GB) for three (3) private lots which are of continuous frontage and under single ownership within 
the Residential (R6) zoning district. 
  
If approved, the owner will be required to recombine the lots into one for commercial development purposes meeting 
the requirements of the General Business (GB) zoning district.  
 
In addition, a variance will be required for one of the three lots consisting of an existing non-conforming commercial 
building which does not meet the required front setback of 20ft. along E. Elm, Crawford and Hugh St. 
 

Frontage: 159.4 ft. (E. Elm St.), 97.3 ft. (Crawford St.) and 146.3 ft. (Hugh St.) 
Area:  14,385 sq. ft. or 0.33 acres 
North:   General Business (GB) 
South:  Residential (R-6) 
East:  Residential (R-6) 
West:  General Business (GB) 

 
Two of the three lots fronting E. Elm St. are vacant.  The third lot at the corner of E. Elm and Crawford consists of an 
existing non-conforming, one-story brick-veneer and concrete block commercial building of approximately 1,782 sq. ft.    
 
The City’s Land Use Plan (CLUP) recommends High-Density Residential development for the property.   
 
Although the (CLUP) recommends High Density Residential Development, the requested change of zone would be 
compatible with existing commercial zoning and uses in proximity to the site.   
 
However, staff recommends a more restrictive zone such as Neighborhood Business (NB) to serve as a more 
appropriate transitional buffer between commercial and residential development. 
 
The applicant intends to rehabilitate the existing commercial building for office-use; business and professional services 
are preferred. 
  
City water and sewer are available to serve the property.  The subject property is not located in a Special Flood Hazard 
Area.  Grading and drainage plans may be required.  
  
At the public hearing held March 21, 2022, no one spoke in favor of or against the request.  
 
On Monday, March 28, 2022, the Goldsboro Planning Commission recommended approval of the change of zone 
request from Residential (R6) to Neighborhood Business (NB). 



9 
 

 
Although the Planning Commission’s recommendation is inconsistent with the City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
(CLUP), the request would be compatible, and therefore, reasonable with existing commercial zoning and uses in 
proximity to the site.  
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and, 
 

1. Find the proposed zoning amendment inconsistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
however, the request would be compatible, and therefore, reasonable with existing commercial zoning and 
uses in proximity to the site. 

2. Find the proposed zoning amendment would be in the public interest because the zoning would allow uses 
that are compatible with adjacent properties within the surrounding areas and; 

3. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Residential (R6) to Neighborhood 
Business (NB). 

 
Councilwoman Matthews made a motion to adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation of approval of Z-2-22. 
The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the 
motion. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-11 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP, COMPREHENSIVE LAND-USE 
MAP AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Z-3-22 RBV Investments, LLC. – North side of E. US 70 Hwy. between Corbett St. and N. Oak Forest 
Dr. and located in the corporate City limits. Ordinance Adopted. The applicant is requesting a change of zone for 
the subject property from Residential Single-Family Conditional Zoning (R-9SFCZ) to Residential Conditional Zoning 
(R-9CZ) limiting the property to a townhome development complex consisting of one-hundred and seven (107) units. 
  
According to the City’s UDO, the proposed development shall meet the Multi-Family and Townhome development 
design standards of the R-9 zoning district. 
  

Frontage: +400 ft. (Corbett St.)  
Area:  599,385 sq. ft. or 13.7 acres 
 
North:   Office and Institutional (O &I-1) 
South:  Residential (R-16/R-12SF), Office and Institutional (O &I-1) 
East:  Residential (R-16) 
West:  Residential (R-16)/Neighborhood Business (NB) 

    
On November 4, 2013, the Goldsboro City Council concurred with the recommendation of the Planning Commission 
and adopted an ordinance changing the zoning for the subject property from Residential (R-12SF) to Residential (R-9 
SFCZ) and approved a conceptual plan for a total of 42 single-family lots.  The site was never developed.  
  
Currently, the property consists of agricultural farmland.   
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Commercial and Industrial development.  
 
The submitted preliminary site plan indicates a total of one-hundred and seven (107) townhome units.   
 
Access to the site will be directly from the Corbett St. terminus off of McClain St.  The applicant intends to extend 
Corbett St. and construct two new roads built to City standards for formal dedication and acceptance into the City’s 
street network.  
 
Parking for the site requires two spaces per unit for 1 and 2 BR apartments and three spaces for units over 3 BRs.  Staff 
is working with developer to ensure compliance with the City’s parking ordinance.  
 
A common area equal to twenty percent (20%) of the entire development (excluding rights-of-way) shall be preserved, 
maintained and improved by the development owner for active recreational use by residents of the development.  The 
site plan shows open space equal to forty-four percent (44%) of the developed area. 
 
In addition, the required open space shall be held in common ownership, for the perpetual benefit of residents of the 
development, by a legally established corporation, association or other legal entity, or be dedicated to the City of 
Goldsboro as a public park. 
 
External City sidewalks are required and are shown for the proposed development utilizing handicap accessible slopes 
and ramps.  Additional sidewalks will be required along interconnecting streets for future development purposes. 
 



10 
 

A commercial lighting plan has not been submitted.  Since the subject property is located adjacent to residentially-
zoned and developed properties, the developer will be required to submit a lighting plan in compliance with the City’s 
Commercial Lighting ordinance. 
 
Interconnectivity has been shown for the site off of Corbett St. and Seymour Village Dr.   
 
Subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  As such, City water and sewer are available to serve 
the property.  The property is not located within a special flood hazard area.  City Engineering will require approval of 
storm water calculations and drainage plans prior to issuance of any building permits.           
 
Street trees have been provided along the proposed townhome street network.  A Type B 15 ft. wide landscape buffer 
is required along all property lines and has been shown for the development.  
 
All utilities shall be underground. 
 
At least twenty-four square feet of individual enclosed storage space shall be provided for each dwelling unit.  
 
Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are properly 
constructed and appropriately screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   
 
Building elevations have not been submitted. Staff will ensure all townhome development design standards are met per 
the requirements of the City’s Unified Development Ordinance prior to issuance of any building permits.      
 
According to the City’s Land Use Plan, higher residential densities are recommended and should be encouraged since 
City water and sewer are available to serve the property. 
 
The City’s CLUP recommends Commercial development for the property.  Multi-family developments are a permitted 
use in commercially-zoned districts such as General Business (GB), Office and Institutional (O & I-1), Neighborhood 
Business (NB), Shopping Center (SC), and Highway Business (HB) and must meet the development requirements of 
the closest, most restrictive residential zoning district.  
 
At the public hearing held March 21, 2022, one person spoke against the proposal and requested City Council not to 
change the existing residential zone from single-family residential use. 
 
On Monday, March 28, 2022, the Goldsboro Planning Commission recommended approval of the change of zone 
request from Residential Single-Family Conditional Zoning (R-9SFCZ) to Residential Conditional Zoning (R-9CZ) 
limiting the property to a townhome development complex consisting of one-hundred and seven (107) units. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and; 
 

1. Find the proposed zoning amendment consistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
2. Find the proposed zoning amendment reasonable and in the public interest because the proposed zoning 

would allow for infill and townhome/multi-family development which are compatible with existing 
properties in the surrounding area. 

3. Find that City water and sewer are available to serve the property and that higher residential densities 
should be encouraged and considered for the site. 

4. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Residential Single-Family Conditional 
Zoning (R-9SFCZ) to Residential Conditional Zoning (R-9CZ) limiting the property to a townhome 
development complex consisting of one-hundred and seven (107) units. 

 
Mayor Ham asked that Attorney Lawrence speak to the signatures on the petition.  Attorney Lawrence shared that the 
petition shared with the Planning Department could have been submitted at the Public Hearing and cannot be 
submitted tonight. 
 
Councilman Aycock shared his concerns regarding the item.   
 
Councilman Aycock made a motion to deny the zoning request. There was no second and the motion failed. 
 
Council discussed the proposed development with Kenny Talton, Planning Director.  
 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to follow the Planning Council recommendation and approve the zoning request.  
The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack. After a roll call vote was held, Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem 
Polack, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Broadaway, Councilwoman Matthews and Councilman Gaylor voted for 
the motion. Councilman Aycock voted against the motion. The motion passed 6:1. 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-12 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP, COMPREHENSIVE LAND-USE 
MAP AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 

 



Y

O

O

rN

V

Q1. 

ClQi

a 

r

FOS
t4-

4..

y
v
N

Orn

x 

ti

cz

O

x

O

OY

a
a yV,• 

c 

U

O

O

UD

U

0Q

O

0
O

o

d

U

asaas

OUcq3
a

ce

Q

C'

n 

r

cc

U

Q

ao

v :% 

w

et

o

CiO4

Uo

0

W

0

U

m

j

N

O 

O

OCA

V3

vi

y

aa 

0
U

O

03

0

cz

0

0

cz

GC

3  U

U

UQ0E0U40, N

0

d

Oq- 

NUY

ri
r -
I







Item C



Item D



Item E



F







G







H

















I



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 — 3 1

RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL AND
APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SHELL

INDUSTRIAL BUILDING IN PARK EAST INDUSTRIAL PARK

WHEREAS, the city has entered into an agreement with Wayne County and the Wayne
County Development Alliance ( WCDA) for the construction of a shell industrial building in Park
East Industrial Park; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to NC General Statute 158- 7. 1( c), staff is requesting that council
ratify the actions of the city council at their meeting on June 5, 2017 and approve the agreement
with Wayne County and the WCDA; and

WHEREAS, the agreement, dated June 6, 2017, was entered into without the proper notice

and resolution requirements being met. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro
North Carolina, this Resolution ratifies the actions taken by council at the meeting on June 5, 2017
and approves the agreement with Wayne County and the Wayne County Development Alliance. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
18th

day of April, 2022. 

vid Ham, Mayor









J















L



W

g

t

Z

M

M

M

M

M

M

O

U

U

U

U

U

U

N

N

0

0

N

N

V '• 

N

N

N

N

N

N

PwG7 ,/

wP.
7. ,

pw4177

U

E, 

Q

O

Q

O

Q

Own- 

x

C

C

C

C

U

x

U

x

U

x

U 

U

E

E

E

E

vr5

u'

c55¢ 

aaaa. 

a

Zo.

U..

c*.

wwwxV

UUxxF

O

O

O

O

O

GO '

O

ZC

M" 

0

p

Q, 

M

O

O

O

O

O

O

p

N

N

N

O

N

W

W

01

p

Cl

fV

00

O ^ 

N

G

O 

O 

Vi

M

p 

Q, 

p

OM

N

yyyWy

W

n

r (

T

N

n

V

t'

l, 

t'. •^• 

O: 

u

u

M

N

O 

M
y

N

v

h

b

y

Vt

w°. 

q

r

w

v3

C

O

O

O

O

O

g

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

p

O

O

O

O

O

N

N

M

N 

O

n"

I

M

a

p

bA

O 

CV

n (

V

00

Nt

O

pp

oG

00

M

O

O

V

S

O, 

Ol

M

Oi

w

01O. 
T

00

Vl

V

Vl

l 

00

N

r

N

N. 

7 , 

O

t 

M

cl

O

l 

h

00 .-- 

O

n

n

R. 

m. 

W

n. 

0

00 ^. 

r

a

Cl

r

rp

vl 

c — 

In

N

M

N

M "

t

O 

8

v

M

vi

vi

o: 

a

V1

N

Q 

M

N

Cu

E

z

N

vcCdO
N

W

U

g

g

g

o

o

p

O

O

V

n

g

R

66

O

00

00

O

C

O

7

Vi

Q• 

R

n

O

h

O

r

OVt

W

pOp

In

M

O •

N- ' 

O

17' 

00

V

r .

D

O

v1

10

t? 

ID

O

o0

M

Ir

O
a 

b

G

M

N

M

N

N

N

In

O

Uds

bs

va

ss

1

Ci

0

q

Z

g

b

z

N

x

cn

fl

COO

rn

d

O

00

o

o

bA

4 

U

W

O

O

cd

W

cd

rn
y

d

U. 

O

O
4, 

x

N

O

N

O

1

O

ON

U

M

d

NQ

N

N

oWi

r, 

0o
a

i

x

o 

y'° 

U

Cd

O

M

G

r+ 

a) 

O

k

00

0

O

0

3 

o

q

USN

EO
b

M

r

N

an) 

N

M

0

bA
1U

0

0

NNU` 

O

O

N

1U

V

O

c

U

o

Aa

on

Q

o

a

o

w

r- 

a) 

Clbi) 
N

ON
O. 

M' 

rnu
C

pG, 

Ci

N

0

O

U

b

O

r: 

M

D

7

U

Ccd
r

4

N

aJ

O

O

G

N

b

O

O

O^ N

O

co

Q

O

O> 

c 

N

N

O

V] 

p, 

3

V

N

U

Q

p

cd

U

c` 

t 

ON

N

U

cc

b

c0, p

QO

O ' 

V] 

O

c 

O

o

Q

C7

O

W

M

rn

W^ 

W

CNo

O

b

QU

M

E" 

W

C7

bA

N

O

t4

c

U

1,.., 

U

o

Q

rn

41) 

o

o

i

a° 

a

U

o

o

x

U

O

bq

N

U

O

N

N

O

U

M

d

C

N

O. 

tr)N

O

O

O

ON

3

O

U

ON

r

O

bq

O

OO

6A

NCC) 

U

U

C

ON

OX

j -

C, 

O

p[ 

p" 

w

Q

Qw

0

O

NO
z 

x3

a

o

5

0

a. 

C

Cn

x

3

3

N

z

U

a

g

t

Z

M

M

M

M

M

M

O

U

U

U

U

U

U

N

N

0

0

N

N

V '• 

N

N

N

N

N

N

PwG7 ,/

wP.7. ,

pw4177

U

E, 

Q

O

Q

O

Q

Own- 

x

C

C

C

C

U

x

U

x

U

x

U 

U

E

E

E

E

vr5

u'

c55¢ 

aaaa. 

a

Zo.

U..

c*.

wwwxV

UUxxF

O

O

O

O

O

GO '

O

ZC

M" 

0

p

Q, 

M

O

O

O

O

O

O

p

N

N

N

O

N

W

W

01

p

Cl

fV

00

O ^ 

N

G

O 

O 

Vi

M

p 

Q, 

p

OM

N

yyyWy

W

n

r (

T

N

n

V

t'

l, 

t'. •^• 

O: 

u

u

M

N

O 

My

N

v

h

b

y

Vt

w°. 

q

r

w

v3

y

O

O

O

O

O

g

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

p

O

O

O

O

O

N

N

M

N 

O

n"

I

M

a

p

l7

O 

CV

n (

V

00

Nt

O

pp

oG

00

M

O

O

V

S

O, 

Ol

M

Oi

w

01O. 
T

00

Vl

V

Vl

l 

00

N

r

N

N. 

7 , 

O

t 

M

cl

O

l 

h

00 .-- 

O

n

n

R. 

m. 

W

n. 

0

00 ^. 

r

a

Cl

r

rp

vl 

c — 

In

N

M

N

M "

t

O 

8

v

M

vi

vi

o: 

a

V1

N

Q 

M

CuEQ

g

g

S

o

0

o

g

o

o

S

p

g

g

g

o

o

p

O

V

n

g

R

66
O

00

00

O

C

O

7

Vi

Q• 

R

n

O

h

O

r

OVt

W

pOp

In

M

O •

N- ' 

O

17' 

00

V

r .

D

O

v1

10

t? 

ID

O

o0

M

Ir

N .

n

M

O

O

N

m

r •-- 

O

M

G

M

N

M

N

N

N

In

Uds

bs

va

ss

g

t

Z

M

M

M

M

M

M

O

U

U

U

U

U

U

N

N

0
0

N

N

V '• 

N

N

N

N

N

N

PwG7 ,/

wP.7. ,

pw4177

U

E, 

Q

O

Q

O

Q

Own- 
x

C

C

C

C

U

x

U

x

U

x

U 

U

E

E

E

E

vr5
u'

c55¢ 

aaaa. 

a

Zo.
U..

c*.

wwwxV
UUxxF



Oni

O

O

O

p

7

7

O

y

a, 
r
r

O

S

O. 

C_ 

D\ 

DD

N

yy

L

L

u

n

n

Pl

V

V

vl, 

ao

h

a

V

C  rti

A

On

Or

D\ 

O

O

O

O (

cj

O

O (

y, 

to

Vi

N

7

S

p

V

M

O

N

r

N

Vl

O

n

N^ 

O

M

n

O

O

fl

a

r

C> 

00

O

S

00

O
01

N

C

V9

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

6A

7

7

a

CD

O

S

S

p

o10 .- 

C

69

S

S

S

O

S

Vi

V

O

O

C

a

d
N

c

t 

a

8

r

O

ID

CD

soon0

vi

K

ti

o

Ir
r,

ol 

o

m ,-• 

n

C

rn

N

O

W

OD

a+

r, 

O) 

ON

S

n00

fl

D

N

W 

O

N

7

D

N

O

O

Cl

O

M

D

M

V1

N /

1

M

R

7

M

O

N

N

Vt

O

O

M^ n

a

n

V'

1

N

7

10

n

0O

O

69

ff9

C

M

00 = 

O

00

M

0

N

U

Oni

O

O

p

p

S

S

S

S

S

S

p

S

S

S

S

S

p

88800
b

M$ 

N

O, 

O. 

C_ 

D\ 

DD

N

V

O
l 

pO .

n -•i

00

0` 

Q

O` 

n

n

Pl

O
N

vl, 

ao

h

a

V

On

Or

D\ 

O

O

O

O (

cj

O

O (

y, 

v
D\ 

b
W

v
N

N

G

N

O

O

O

O
M

O

M /'

1

N- 

M

V

M

O

N

r

N

Vl

O

n

N^ 

O

M

n

n

N

MN

N

N
N

O
01

Mn

60q

69

V9

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

69

6A

69

7

a

CD

O

S

S

p

o10 .- 

S

S

s

p

Cl

S- 

S

S

S

S

O

S

S

S

O

S

S

S

s

p

M

O

O

O

C

c

ao

vi

M

oD

O+ 

d
N

c

t 

a

8

r

O

O

o

a

o

0

0

pp

O

8

O

vi

K

ti

o

o

m ,-• 

n

C

rn

N

O

W

Or

O

S

O
O

O

O ({ 

O

n

Oen

y 

S

O0

Mw

D

N

W 

O

N

N^ 

V 

O

rl

D

N

O

O

Cl

O

M

D

M

V1

N /

1

M

R

7

M

O

N

N

Vt

O

O

M^ n

a

n

V'

1

N

7

10

n

0O

O

M

00 = 

O

00

M

N

N

M

6A

69

V9

69

69

on

69

69

6H

69

69

69

6A

69

Y3

s

s

ss

o

s

ssso

S

so

so
0

N

C

Q

i . 

i

i . 

i

N

V 

t

t

0'

n0

f

N

7

bM-' .- 

IT

S

O

N

M

N

N

7

69

69

69

69

6A

69

69

69

69

fI9

bFi

69

fA

69

65

c

c

0

0

5

5  

a

P

P

oy

o

t

r

N

c

A7

c

w

aAi

m

w

ani

y

w

m

U

414

N

O • , 

Q `

10

N

U

e

Q

e

v

3 .

L

5 • 

Ca

Ci

3 .

2

5

N

ti

CCS % ., ° .

N

N

S . 

NQn
v .

N

C

G

N

W

A

N

C

Q

C

9

N

C

d

C

Qr

W

A

N

C¢ 

O

9

C

A

W

C

A

W

U

0aon 
o

U

N'

O

a¢ 

3Q 

mfa.
g , 

U

Qv
Q

xd ' 

U

oy.

tw

g

mU

e,

oz

o

w

C<
G

b '

C" " 

a 

A  °'  .`

zg  °' `  

E • " 

Ca  

r =  ,

a `  

o .

ig

E    

o  

o  

o   

A  

o

o   

A

o , 

o

o

U

69 .° 

Udu
QUu
adO
n

CCQOUxa
U¢

UQ
r

axa.<
U2

C

QUUxQvn
UQUzv 
U¢

xrn

zxm
F

N

xaC) 

r

Q ,

JU

















ITEM_____________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 18, 2022 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Operating Budget Amendment FY21-22 

BACKGROUND: Council adopted the FY21-22 operating budget at the June 18, 2021 
Council meeting.  The operating annual budget may be amended from time 
to time in order to adjust to current operating conditions. 

DISCUSSION: Please find attached an ordinance amending the annual operating budget 
for fiscal year 2022 for multiple items that have arisen during the current 
budget year. 

Insurance 
As a point of reference, the City expended approximately $627K in multi-
peril insurance, $193K in auto liability insurance, $150K in worker’s 
compensation insurance, and $207K in flood insurance for a total of 
$1,177K in non-health insurance related coverage.  The City carries 
insurance policies for general liability, public officials, employment 
practices, liquor, property, auto, crime, inland marine, law enforcement 
liability, umbrella, security bonds, worker’s compensation, drone, cyber 
liability and flood. 

With the new insurance broker, Arthur J. Gallagher, we have been able to 
better identify direct costs to the departments instead of past methods being 
used.  When the insurance accounts were initially budgeted for FY22, 
amounts were based on prior budget amounts.  We received detailed 
allocations of the various costs and are correcting those allocations with 
this budget amendment.  We found that the insurance costs were skewed in 
favor of the general fund, and costs did go up this past year in worker’s 
compensation (19.24%), auto (89.67%), general liability (30.90%), 
property (12.53%), and umbrella 78.82%. 

Costs are charged to each department and the reallocation of budget 
included in this amendment is broken down by fund is as follows: 
General Fund Multi-Peril $155,437 
General Fund Auto  $  15,818 
Stormwater Multi-Peril $    4,781 
Stormwater Auto  $  12,665 
Utility Fund Multi-Peril $(  8,906) 
Utility Fund Auto  $    8,906 
Occupancy Tax Multi-Peril $       567 
Total  $189,268 

General Fund Worker’s Comp  $124,490 
Utility Fund Worker’s Comp  $  17,845 
Occupancy Tax Worker’s Comp  $       988 
Total  $136,467 

M



 
 
 
 
Additional expenditures were funded with prior year loan proceeds that 
were received in FY22 in both the General Fund and Stormwater Fund.  
Cell tower lease revenues funded additional worker’s compensation 
insurance in the Utility Fund, and Utility Fund reduced expenditures in 
multi-peril to cover the additional costs in auto. Miscellaneous revenue in 
the Occupancy Tax Fund funded the additional insurance expenditures, and 
the 
 
Paramount Theater 
Additional expenditure appropriations have been requested by the director, 
Mr. Adam Twiss, to fund operations until June 30.  The Paramount has 
experienced revenue levels that have increased back to pre-pandemic 
levels.  Revenues were budgeted conservatively in FY22 at approximately 
$173K, and Mr. Twiss has estimated that revenues will increase $282K to 
a total of approximately $455K.  That is not in addition to the SBA ARPA 
grant received of $332K for the Paramount.  This amendment requests 
revenue appropriations of $158K to allow the Paramount to execute 
necessary programming through the rest of the fiscal year.  The remainder 
will be allowed to roll into fund balance. 
 
Goldsboro Event Center 
In similar fashion, the Events center has experienced significant growth 
this year above what was estimated in the FY22 budgeting process.  Mr. 
Twiss has requested additional expenditure appropriations of $22K in 
order to fund operations through the end of FY22, and this will be funded 
with additional charges for services.  The revenues from the GEC were 
budgeted at approximately $41K and through March have exceeded $54K. 
 
Telephone Costs 
Earlier this year we began a project to better identify and capture Verizon 
device costs across the City.  We partnered with IT to go through the list of 
almost 300 devices used by the City on the Verizon network.  We were 
able to identify the correct cost centers and have charged these departments 
according to their device usage.  A number of the costs were paid for by 
IT.  We have reallocated approximately $85K in expenditures to these 
departments and it is being funded with a reduction in expenditures in 
telephone in the IT department.  The 2 largest departments are Police at 
$56K and Fire at $16K. 
 
Fuel Costs 
The City’s fuel costs have risen dramatically this past quarter with no 
indications of easing in near future.  The gas and diesel expenditure 
accounts are depleted, and additional appropriations are necessary so that 
we may continue to fuel our fleet.  An increase of $146K in gas and $58K 
in diesel is recommended.  This will be offset by charges for services that 
are billed out to each department, and also to the GWTA.  This will 
increase the estimated year end total to approximately $904K for gas and 
diesel. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
Garage 
The outside repairs account in the Garage is depleted.  There was a major 
repair to a fire truck for approximately $55K that is included in the outside 
repairs.  Additional expenditures for outside repairs are requested to allow 
the Garage to finish the remaining fiscal year.  This will be offset by 
charges for services that are billed out to each department monthly.  The 
additional cost of the motor for the Fire Department will be funded with 
prior year loan proceeds. 
 
Property Tax Fees 
Additional property tax listing and collection fees are requested to finish 
out the fiscal year in the amount of $9.7K.  This will be funded with an 
appropriation of additional tax revenues. 
 
Land Sales 
Expenses for the sale of real property in the amount of $26.6K are 
requested to pay for proceeds split with Wayne County and advertising.  
This will be paid for with an appropriation of sales of land revenue. 
 
Golf 
It is necessary to appropriate additional expenditures for alcohol for resale 
in the Golf division in the amount of $5K.  There were no revenues 
budgeted for alcohol sales for Golf, however revenues have exceeded 
$10K through March 31. 
 
Repairs Cost for Insurance Claims 
The City has had several insurance claims regarding City property this 
fiscal year.  We do not budget for insurance revenue or insurance repairs  
expense during the budget process since we have no way of knowing what 
department might be involved in an accident involving city property.  At 
this time, we are requesting expenditure appropriations to cover costs to 
repair city property in the amount of $103K and this will be funded with an 
appropriation of insurance proceeds revenue.  The breakdown by fund is as 
follows: 
 
General Fund  $  80,574 
Utility Fund  $  22,963 
Total   $103,537 
 
Personnel – Police to IT 
In order to assist with the ever growing needs of City for IT services, the 
Manager has authorized the transfer of a position in Police to the IT 
department.  There is no increase in the total number of FTE’s.  The FY22 
Adopted Budget was approved with 482 FTE’s.  Council authorized the 
addition of 7 additional positions to assist Finance and IT earlier this year, 
bringing the total to 489 FTE’s. 
 
Funding will be accomplished by reducing salaries in Police approximately 
$20K to transfer to the IT salary expenditure line item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Access Drive at the Maxwell Center 
At the September 20, 2021 council meeting, City Council authorized 
improvements associated with the realignment of the access drive at the  
Maxwell Center with a cost not to exceed $50K (Res 2021-71).  It is 
necessary to appropriate the expenditures for this improvement, and it will 
be funded with prior year loan proceeds. 
 
Forfeited Performance Bond 
Planning has requested that a performance bond for Preservation North 
Carolina for 302 S. John Street be appropriated to pay for a demolition on 
this property.  The bond was received 7/15/15 in the amount of $6,950.00.  
The demolition was paid for by the City on 11/4/21 to Corbett Clearing 
and Demolition, LLC in the amount of $5,000.  It is necessary to 
appropriate expenditures to cover this cost, and it will be funded with 
forfeited performance bond revenue. 
 
General Fund – Other 
There are several other expenditures that have arisen during the current 
fiscal year making it necessary to appropriate expenditures.  These items 
will be funded will be funded with prior year loan proceeds. Major items 
are listed below: 
 
Solid Waste  Overtime   $  21,000 
Fire   Overtime   $  58,000 
Fire   Vacation Pay Out  $  29,000 
Finance   Audit Fees   $  17,300 
Multiple Departments Natural Gas    $  23,500 
Parks & Recreation T.C. Coley   $    5,000 
Parks & Recreation Fleet Charges   $    8,000 
Non-recurring Capital Wayne Co Shell Building $142,000 
Total       $303,800 
 
Fund Balance Appropriated – General Fund 
Presented below is the Appropriated Fund Balance for the General Fund as 
it currently stands. 

Date Description Adopted
6/18/2021 Ord 2021-11 FY21-22 Adopted Budget -$               
8/2/2021 FY20-21 Purchase Order Rollovers 156,632.76      

Current Year Appropriations 156,632.76$    

Proposed -$               

Current Year with Proposed 156,632.76$     
 
 Utility Fund – Transfer to Capital Project 
 In the past fiscal year, the City completed the $1.5M upgrade to the Water 

Treatment Plant to increase the water production capacity through the Plate 
Settlers Project.  The City was responsible for paying the debt issuance 
costs to DWI in the amount of $34,627.  This amount needs to be 
transferred from the Utility Fund to the Plate Settlers Capital Project Fund 
(W1112), and this will be funded with an appropriation of cell tower lease 
revenue. 

 
 





y

rn

Ln

t. 

To

4r = () 

v

cda) 

E

0)

s- 

m+' 

p ' 

a) 

a) 

ti

ch

r. 

Q) 

4: 

a) 

p0q

o° 

a, 

o

o° 

a. 

y

o$ 

ct

U3

rA

o , 

0, 

Y , , 

bO

3

0

3U0
30

O

w

a) 

C

0

10

id

a) ;, 

v, 

cd

v 

cd !

Z

03  

O

4° 

ClO

7i

VAI`

F" 

b

4° 

b -

o ? 

a)•

o

O

a -

o

oU

a) 

0

0

v•' 

a

mo=

d -

o

o ° 

a 

0 °,' 

N ° 

V3

cd

En

2

0

Cd

bD

0

0 '

Cl °' 

axi

3

y

v ? 

4" 

cd

14 ° '

p > ^

o

7

a`"
i = 

ami

42

C4

0

a 

o

a°
i `" 

X  

aki

ami

ai

ani

3

w° 

c° 

fn

o = •

o

o

0 ° .

0

p

cd

a
40, 

a) 

bA  

x

2

0

3

rn

4° 

s0. °= 

U

En

N

a) 

cd '

d

cd

3

3 -

o

a) 

y

a) 

a) 

a) 

V) ,

0

a)

cY~d+ _- 

N

N

Q

U

O ° 

C

bA
cd

by

OD

0

O

p ' 

v

G

r.^

iN

cn " 

0. 

g:  ° " 

o ' 

a. 

v

a) 

0. -

o

a
w

a) 

0. 

cd

C

x ^

o

O

O

cd

cd .

0

a) 

co

o '

b , ,,,,., :... 

3

o

n, •  >; 

x

x

L, 

x

CA

S. 

a) 

Z

x

V

4° 

w . 

O

N

s. 

4] ° 

0

O

4° 

p

o

bU

a) >, 

a) 

4° 

o

N

0

o

W

c

a) 

p

p

b

s 

4

a) 

U

4y .

p- 

4. 

U" 

N

y.
y

Q

c0

cn "

o

4. 

o , 

0

w

4 

p

r "

o, 

O

cd
0. 

0

cn

C

y= 

cn

4Z

d

p

V

0 . 

N ^

ty

bA
x

fc 

O

rn

Z

O  -

s 

a) 

v 

O ° -

off '_' 

b 

ul

oO

v3 ° 

d

w

w

w30. 

U 

0

0 `

o

4Z, 

0

r- 

a ° °;., 

03

00

4. '

i. 

C

O

O . -

d

a) 

O •, 

O

a) 

O

O '

O `' 

O

a)  

Q

O

U

Q '

O ... 

4. . 

4r

N .

b

a .

O

4-. 

H

4. 

4r

N

N + 

y

N

O

QZ

pq

a -

d -

o

W

0 .. 

o. -

0

0
3

0
En 3

a "

t , 

cl

a

a

o

o

M

0
cd

Q

a°, 

0

0 ° 

0° 

0

T7 ° 

o -

o

o

0

0

0 .

o

o . 

o

0

0. 

0. `' 

0. 

a) ' 

4~ 

c . . 

aCd
0. 

W

a

w

cd

w .° "

O

0. 

p

0, 

x

0., `

cR

a
4 '

b `

d '

b

0

a) ° 

a
4° 

a

00 = 

c 

o > 

U

a 

QO
o , 

S. 

0

cts

a) 

0

cd

0

cd

0

C  

w

cd

0

cd

u

cd

3

w ° 

w

w '

U ~' ° 

co ¢, 

o ^

o

O >, 

y0 .

n ° 

O

y _ 

O

id $ 

O

O ° 

o

r . 

p .' 

U

Q

w

Cd
a0i

b°'
o ° .

0

n

a0i

3

o '' '' 

ami

E

C7 '' 

o

Z >

4 ° '

O

v • -

d

U

a) 

rn

O

y

3

mh

E

y   

ami  . 

y

Z

cc '

C7

y

v- 

cFi

cOi  

EA

rn

d
F 

a) 

0

v

fy • 

a) 

o

C

0 ? 

o

ami

v

3

a"'
i

a) 

C7

a) 

o

a) 

a) 

a) 

cd

O

O

O,, 

v

v

ti

cd

v

0, 

o

C

v

O

v

a

v

v

y

d

p

y

v

Z

a) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

a) 

G

Q

O

ul

y

p " 

C .

0 "

C  

O

p

ai ° 

o

C

y

14

3

C

cd

O, 

V] 

o

c

V] ,- 

cn  

V] 

Q

V] '> 

U

N

V] 

w

b

p

0

U
t» 

d

d

r

d71

o

r

d71

N

4• 

d

0

r

d71

d

C7

r

d71 .? 

d
a, 

dCd
d

b

d

d

o

d

o

p

F 

a) 

Cd

up

9

C', 

c 

O

rn

O +¢ 

W

N

o

aQi

W

o

b

0

0

W >

p, 

3°° 

3w
3

to

3.

0 :

3: 

3   

o

a) 

o

C7 ° 

3

o

0 ° ° 

aU) 

aU) 

0

a>
i

o

0

Cd° 



 

 2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the 
General Fund, Stormwater Fund, Utility Fund, and Occupancy Tax Fund be amended as follows: 

 

GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference  
City Manager (1012)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 785,598.50$           785,598.50$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 1,550.00                 -                           (1,550.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          3,710.00                  3,710.00               
Telephone & Communication Services 2,200.00                 3,150.00                  950.00                  

Total Expend. - City Manager 789,348.50$           792,458.50$            3,110.00$             

Human Resources (1016)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 669,211.97$           669,211.97$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 1,571.00                 -                           (1,571.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          2,813.00                  2,813.00               

Total Expend. - Human Resources 670,782.97$           672,024.97$            1,242.00$             

Community Relations (1017)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 148,629.45$           148,629.45$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 919.00                    -                           (919.00)                 
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          382.00                     382.00                  

Total Expend. - Community Relations 149,548.45$           149,011.45$            (537.00)$               

Paramount Theater (1018)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 359,944.96$           359,944.96$            -$                      
Salaries & Wages Overtime 2,250.00                 4,250.00                  2,000.00               
Salaries & Wages Part-Time 25,000.00               45,000.00                20,000.00             
Salaries & Wages Bonus 1,550.00                 3,100.00                  1,550.00               
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 254.00                    -                           (254.00)                 
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          1,571.00                  1,571.00               
Bank Fees 680.00                    1,000.00                  320.00                  
Cleaning Supplies 2,473.00                 3,023.00                  550.00                  
Food & Beverage Reslae 1,821.00                 3,021.00                  1,200.00               
Alcohol for Resale 1,000.00                 1,800.00                  800.00                  
Operational Supplies 4,500.00                 7,500.00                  3,000.00               
Telephone & Communication 400.00                    525.00                     125.00                  
Electricity 25,000.00               41,500.00                16,500.00             
Natural Gas 550.00                    1,850.00                  1,300.00               
Printing 1,200.00                 2,500.00                  1,300.00               
Paramount Ticket Payments 150,000.00             260,000.00              110,000.00           

Total Expend. - Paramount Theater 576,622.96$           736,584.96$            159,962.00$         

Goldsboro Events Center (1020)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 102,926.26$           102,926.26$            -$                      
Salaries & Wages Part-Time 8,000.00                 8,598.00                  598.00                  
Salaries & Wages Bonus -                          598.00                     598.00                  
Wellness Earnings -                          125.00                     125.00                  
Vacation Pay Out -                          3,175.00                  3,175.00               
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 127.00                    -                           (127.00)                 
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          428.00                     428.00                  
Bank Fees 800.00                    3,975.00                  3,175.00               
Alcohol for Resale 3,000.00                 4,500.00                  1,500.00               
Telephone & Communication -                          1,025.00                  1,025.00               
Electricity 13,200.00               24,200.00                11,000.00             
Natural Gas 2,500.00                 3,300.00                  800.00                  
Fees & Dues -                          1,000.00                  1,000.00               

Total Expend. - Goldsboro Events Ctr. 130,553.26$           153,850.26$            23,297.00$           
 

 
 
 



 

 3 

GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference  
 
Inspections (1024)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 581,008.56$           581,008.56$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 2,677.00                 -                           (2,677.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          2,674.00                  2,674.00               
Telephone & Communication 6,848.00                 7,108.00                  260.00                  

Total Expend. - Inspections 590,533.56$           590,790.56$            257.00$                

Downtown Development (1025)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 319,495.76$           319,495.76$            -$                      
Telephone & Communication -                          1,550.00                  1,550.00               

Total Expend. - Downtown Develop. 319,495.76$           321,045.76$            1,550.00$             

Information Technology (1030)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 1,964,920.14$        1,964,920.14$         -$                      
Salaries 593,400.20             613,300.20              19,900.00             
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 2,000.00                 -                           (2,000.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          4,243.00                  4,243.00               
Telephone & Communication 259,768.00             174,668.00              (85,100.00)            
Multi-Peril Insurance 1,100.00                 21,637.00                20,537.00             

Total Expend. - Information Tech. 2,821,188.34$        2,778,768.34$         (42,420.00)$          

Public Works Administration (1111)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 454,101.11$           454,101.11$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 641.00                    -                           (641.00)                 
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          1,417.00                  1,417.00               
Telephone & Communication 2,033.00                 2,733.00                  700.00                  
Natural Gas 30,000.00               32,500.00                2,500.00               

Total Expend. - Public Works Admin. 486,775.11$           490,751.11$            3,976.00$             

Garage (1114)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 1,352,505.69$        1,352,505.69$         -$                      
Garage Credits (1115) (780,075.00)            (860,075.00)             (80,000.00)            
Fuel Credits (1115) (732,350.00)            (868,350.00)             (136,000.00)          
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 3,193.00                 471.75                     (2,721.25)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          4,137.00                  4,137.00               
Gas 450,000.00             596,000.00              146,000.00           
Diesel 250,000.00             308,000.00              58,000.00             
Repairs-Insurance Claims -                          726.00                     726.00                  
Outside Repairs 136,069.71             216,069.71              80,000.00             

Total Expend. - Garage 679,343.40$           749,485.15$            70,141.75$           

Building & Grounds (1133)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 730,941.12$           730,941.12$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 2,000.00                 673.57                     (1,326.43)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          2,803.00                  2,803.00               
Telephone & Communication 2,100.00                 2,600.00                  500.00                  
Repairs (Insurance Claims) 5,787.87                 7,167.87                  1,380.00               
Multi-Peril Insurance 5,785.00                 35,396.00                29,611.00             

Total Expend. - Building & Grounds 746,613.99$           779,581.56$            32,967.57$           
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 4 

GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference  
Cemetery (1142)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 352,304.79$           352,304.79$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 1,690.00                 -                           (1,690.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          1,119.00                  1,119.00               
Telephone & Communication 1,501.00                 2,326.00                  825.00                  

Total Expend. - Cemetery 355,495.79$           355,749.79$            254.00$                

Finance (2111)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 1,395,074.00$        1,395,074.00$         -$                      
Office Supply Credits (7,257.00)                (7,257.00)                 -                        
Postage Credits (32,542.00)              (32,542.00)               -                        
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 3,975.00                 -                           (3,975.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          5,641.00                  5,641.00               
Audit 32,643.00               49,943.00                17,300.00             
Telephone & Communication 1,367.00                 1,542.00                  175.00                  
Tax Listing Fees 270,000.00             277,900.00              7,900.00               
Multi-Peril Insurance 400.00                    48,120.00                47,720.00             
Tax Listing Fees NCVTS 70,000.00               71,800.00                1,800.00               

Total Expend. - Finance 1,733,660.00$        1,810,221.00$         76,561.00$           

Planning (3151)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 1,255,082.62$        1,255,082.62$         -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 4,532.00                 180.00                     (4,352.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          2,526.00                  2,526.00               
Demolition 32,845.00               37,845.00                5,000.00               

Total Expend. - Planning 1,292,459.62$        1,295,633.62$         3,174.00$             

Street Maintenance (4134)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 1,057,500.72$        1,057,500.72$         -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 6,993.00                 2,460.00                  (4,533.00)              

Total Expend. - Street Maintenance 1,064,493.72$        1,059,960.72$         (4,533.00)$            

Solid Waste (4143)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 3,928,064.50$        3,928,064.50$         -$                      
Salaries & Wages Overtime 10,000.00               31,000.00                21,000.00             
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 12,861.00               69,500.00                56,639.00             
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          8,375.00                  8,375.00               
Telephone & Communication 8,000.00                 11,300.00                3,300.00               
Auto Liability 36,599.00               43,730.00                7,131.00               

Total Expend. - Solid Waste 3,995,524.50$        4,091,969.50$         96,445.00$           

Engineering (4172)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 1,099,652.85$        1,099,652.85$         -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 2,217.00                 -                           (2,217.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          4,188.00                  4,188.00               
Repairs (Insurance Claims) -                          5,863.00                  5,863.00               

Total Expend. - Engineering 1,101,869.85$        1,109,703.85$         7,834.00$             

Non-Recurring Capital Outlay (7315)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 407,190.75$           407,190.75$            -$                      
EDA - Wayne Co Shell Building -                          142,000.00              142,000.00           
Maxwell Center Property -                          50,000.00                50,000.00             
Expenses for Sale of Real Property -                          26,582.00                26,582.00             

Total Expend. - Non-Recurring Cap. Out. 407,190.75$           625,772.75$            218,582.00$         
 

 



 

 5 

GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference

Parks and Recreation (7460)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 3,067,621.75$        3,067,621.75$         -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 10,347.00               -                           (10,347.00)            
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          11,987.00                11,987.00             
Fleet Charges 10,000.00               18,000.00                8,000.00               
Telephone & Communication 4,000.00                 7,440.00                  3,440.00               
Natural Gas 7,500.00                 11,500.00                4,000.00               
T.C. Coley 2,000.00                 7,000.00                  5,000.00               
Multi-Peril Insurance 16,543.00               29,778.00                13,235.00             

Total Expend. - Parks and Recreation 3,118,011.75$        3,153,326.75$         35,315.00$           

Golf Course (7461)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 516,940.22$           516,940.22$            -$                      
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 3,088.00                 -                           (3,088.00)              
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          1,546.00                  1,546.00               
Concessionaire Resale 11,421.00               16,421.00                5,000.00               

Total Expend. - Golf Course 531,449.22$           534,907.22$            3,458.00$             

Fire (5120)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 6,006,384.54$        6,006,384.54$         -$                      
Salaries & Wages Overtime 140,000.00             198,000.00              58,000.00             
Vacation Pay Out 12,500.00               41,500.00                29,000.00             
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 23,146.00               50,336.00                27,190.00             
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          29,945.00                29,945.00             
Fleet Charges 56,625.00               111,725.00              55,100.00             
Telephone & Communication 5,500.00                 21,700.00                16,200.00             
Natural Gas 6,000.00                 7,000.00                  1,000.00               
Repairs (Insurance Claims) -                          59,605.00                59,605.00             
Multi-Peril Insurance 64,202.00               80,921.00                16,719.00             

Total Expend. - Fire 6,314,357.54$        6,607,116.54$         292,759.00$         

Police (6121)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 4,295,586.97$        4,295,586.97$         -$                      
Salaries 5,142,013.64          5,122,113.64           (19,900.00)            
Worker's Comp Claims Cost 78,000.00               31,304.00                (46,696.00)            
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          34,985.00                34,985.00             
Telephone & Communication 1,800.00                 58,350.00                56,550.00             
Natural Gas 17,070.00               33,070.00                16,000.00             
Repairs (Insurance Claims) 767.00                    13,767.00                13,000.00             
Multi-Peril Insurance 67,530.00               95,145.00                27,615.00             
Auto Liability 19,696.00               28,383.00                8,687.00               

Total Expend. - Police 9,622,463.61$        9,712,704.61$         90,241.00$           

All Other Expenditures 8,338,019.11$        8,338,019.11$         -$                      
Total Expenditures - General Fund 45,835,801.76$      46,909,438.08$       1,073,636.32$      

 
 

Revenues
Tax Revenues 17,825,544.00$      17,835,244.00$       9,700.00$             
Licenses and Permits 378,450.00             378,450.00              -                        
Revenue from Other Agencies 16,896,255.00        16,896,255.00         -                        
Charges for Services 4,805,727.00          5,059,718.00           253,991.00           
Capital Returns 2,484,326.00          3,208,697.32           724,371.32           
Miscellaneous Revenue 81,027.00               166,601.00              85,574.00             
Shared Services 3,207,840.00          3,207,840.00           -                        
Appropriated Fund Balance 156,632.76             156,632.76              -                        

Total Revenues - General Fund 45,835,801.76$      46,909,438.08$       1,073,636.32$      
 

 



 

 6 

STORMWATER FUND Current Amended Difference

Stormwater Division (4137)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 1,045,590.00$        1,045,590.00$         -$                      
Multi-Peril Insurance 101.00                    4,882.00                  4,781.00               
Auto Liability 729.00                    13,394.00                12,665.00             

Total Expend. - Stormwater 1,046,420.00$        1,063,866.00$         17,446.00$           

All Other Expenditures 1,169,780.00$        1,169,780.00$         -$                      
Total Expenditures - Stormwater  Fund 2,216,200.00$        2,233,646.00$         17,446.00$           

 

Revenues
Charges for Services 1,575,000.00$        1,575,000.00$         -$                      
Capital Returns 1,200.00                 18,646.00                17,446.00             
Appropriated Fund Balance 640,000.00             640,000.00              -                        

Total Revenues - Stormwater Fund 2,216,200.00$        2,233,646.00$         17,446.00$           
 

 
UTILITY FUND Current Amended Difference

Billing, Meter & Inventory Services (4174)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 747,513.43$           747,513.43$            -$                      
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          1,182.00                  1,182.00               
Multi-Peril Insurance 179.00                    1,140.00                  961.00                  

Total Expend. - Billing, Meter & Inventory Services 747,692.43$           749,835.43$            2,143.00$             

Distribution & Collections (4175)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 2,668,121.47$        2,668,121.47$         -$                      
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          5,961.00                  5,961.00               
Repairs (Insurance Claims) 1,792.00                 8,104.00                  6,312.00               
Multi-Peril Insurance 3,187.00                 9,094.00                  5,907.00               
Auto Liability 8,080.00                 16,986.00                8,906.00               

Total Expend. - Distrib. & Collections 2,681,180.47$        2,708,266.47$         27,086.00$           

Water Treatment (4176)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 4,518,503.64$        4,518,503.64$         -$                      
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          3,827.00                  3,827.00               
Multi-Peril Insurance 72,321.00               91,500.00                19,179.00             

Total Expend. - Water Treatment 4,590,824.64$        4,613,830.64$         23,006.00$           

Water Reclamation (4177)
FY21-22 Adopted Budget 6/18/21 4,786,419.57$        4,786,419.57$         -$                      
Worker's Compensation Insurance -                          5,228.00                  5,228.00               
Repairs (Insurance Claims) 500.00                    10,536.00                10,036.00             
Multi-Peril Insurance 248,237.00             213,284.00              (34,953.00)            

Total Expend. - Water Reclamation 5,035,156.57$        5,015,467.57$         (19,689.00)$          
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

d' 

CO

OO
O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

cL
l

C6

U

eC

4 .-- . 

CC

d

00
L --:

L--:

00

6  --  

00 . 

C  

a) 

it

L(

i

L-.: 

V-:

Lrs

L- = 

cl'

J

LO

m

m

00

00

00 ,-- 

CC

m

N

m

m

cq

N

0v

C11

m  

m ",

1,

C

m= 

m

m

m

ol

Lo

N .- 

00

N - 

C

o

0

m

0

m

0

aci

V5 .

n

C

ci

cli

ci

ai

ci

ci

d

cc

o .; - 

Ln

LOcq
N

y

m

co

m

m

00

m

w

wA

69

GPI

EA

f03

603 &

I- 

6g

FA

ff3

69

61,
3

ffl

64

EfT

69

e 

0

0

O

C° 

O

O

0

0

O

O

L

0

0

0

0
L— 

N

O

O

O

O

m

0

0

0

0

O

m

m

00000
O

00
o ..

0

m

00
0

o0v

o

000c4
N

0

V

cc

o

to

00000
0

co

00000
0

oCc

Cri

aim
cc

qN
ci

Rei

4ocicc.
4

m

cieo4
cq 

ccoo0oo4
m

c6

aiccoo0o
N

uli

m

m

N

m

o

co "

o

cq

U5

m

0

00

00

00

m

N

00

m

m

0

o

m

o

m

ts

coop

CDo

vc

1-

4

m

ccc

cq

ao

Ln

m

oo

00
r. 

t— 

0

0

m

m= 

uo

m

m

m

cq

co

eq

N '

t

00

N

ca

o

t— 

in)

nctc
m

c0i

atm  

000

amo

c

0616
cq  

m

C

oco

co

my
m

00oc0i

C

n

0 .. 

cc

0o

m

t

m

m

00

0

m

oo

m

m

1

o

N

4, 

C

C7

m

CO

eqo

d

Cdb

0

0

0

0

N

N

0

0

O

m

cc
m

m

0

0

0

0

0

O *. 

0

o

c..° 

00
0

oc
i

o

0

oocy

o0

0

0

0o
m

0

00000
0

o

om_
q

0o

cio

ci

ti

r

N

L6

N

c•

S16o00
o0

m

mom0 + 

N0

N

0

NLo
v

o

mN00o

o

cmc

cmc

mo  

M 

m00
rrcq 

N

C

m0

m

0

0

0 

a)

N0o
m

C

0

0

o0

oo

co

o

cn

00

N

oo 

n

co

cc

ci

00

0 . 

0

00
L 

n

o

m

rn

a) 

o

0

00

00

N

cc

m

o .

n ,

o ,

o -

4

m

7p

s. 

Lo

00

00

co

cq

Lo

Lo

m

L- 

L— 

m

m

m

0

m

It

m

r- 

m

m

N

m

N

m

m - 

m .. 

r. 

c) 

cq

ti

o

r. 

co
L- ;

9

7

m

m

0

0 . 

eq

U

I.. 

U

cr. 

cn  

c 

tfr

t» 

sg

efa

OwU
4-. 
a) 

ao4

k

0  

U

d

W ° -

4

w

o

eq

cq

eq

C

cq

c` 

W

4. 

rn

00

co

W

y

cG

m

C

co

U > 

q

Q

cc > 

y

0

C

0

F

U  

C

y

o

0

o

fs+ 

Z

0

C

C

t- 

0

C

Q

9b

F

on ' 

to

o

a0
s. 

s. 

m : 

an °' 

A

a0

0

m

do ° 

p

U

fs, 

C ° 

44

ID

C °' 

z. 

04

a) 

C

C

C

m

C

U

y

a

r. 

CO

C

C

cz

m

0.
1

C

d ° ° 

ea

PQ

U ° = 

0

0)) 

C > 

C

a) 

a) ° -

o

d ° 

N

C7

o 

d

rte. 

y

a) 

U

d

5

tS

a' 

C

y0

U

ani

O

A

cd

a) 

0 .

7

a) 

o

U

r

o ' 

F  

k

O 

P4

F

c

d

O

U

ca

d

c0

C

d  

F

O

O

s5. 

m

0.  

m

O (

3 

O

F'
i

0

a) " 

u) 

Cl) 

4'' 

i. 

41  

O

v) 

d

G'
i

m

0.
i

m

a) 

U ^

O

W

A

d

C

do

d

d0

an

d

Wo

U

o° 

o

0_ .o

aD

U

rG ° 

ww
o

o

F

w

o

a° 

C

O

o

o

d

aC/
C

d

a) 

d

m

C

0

F

W

k " 

k

amt

ti4a) 

K

k

a0i 

0

c 

C4

c
i

k °?

3Cq

o

i. 

bD °' 

P+ 

k

k

a0i

cz

a

b

1 

W ° 

r, 

7

W

m

m

W

W

C

C

bD , 

0

9

U

4' -

C' 

W

y 

G" •. 

W

W

a

C

a4

y

o

R' 

1

k

CIIp

o

c 

O

j> 

a

U

C > 

c ° 

c 

ca

a

m

a

v, 

0

ai , , 

a) 

s' 

as

o

o , , 

cd

Co

ca > 

0

as

GL

F +' 

G. 

P'. 

o

CKz
3

0 +

rz, 

o

0

opdUU
fr. 

o

U

UU
o + 

U

o , ,: 

o

o

P;

UU
d

o

H

A

A

F

U

F

F

F 

Q

F

Q' 

F

O

U

F

F

F

F

a' 

F

r- 



N



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 3

RESOLUTION WITHDRAWING PROPERTY FOR SALE

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at
211 S. Slocumb Street (Pin # 3509141295); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by
upset bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the surplus and upset bid process on July 13, 2020, 
and conducted the upset bid process and received no upset bids, and was approved by the Wayne
County Board of Commissioners on July 21, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the original offerer was the winning bidder for the property described above, in
the amount of $2, 500.00 ( Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and no/ 100) submitted by
Imari 011iver ( Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the

amount of $125. 00 ( One Hundred Twenty Five Dollars and no/ 100); and

WHEREAS, attempts have been made to contact the offeror without success, and it is the

desire of the City Council withdraw the property from sale as it is authorized to do in Resolution
2020- 44. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council hereby withdraws the property for sale to Ms. 011iver. 
2) The Finance Director shall return the earnest money deposit to the Offeror, Ms. Imari

011iver. 

3) The City Manager' s office shall be able to offer the property for sale to other interested
buyers. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 18`
h

day of April, 2022. 

Attested by: 

City Clerk

A ayor-Davi-d Ham



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-  9.44

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at 211 S.
Slocumb Street( Pin# 35091412951; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid,
after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of
2, 500.00( Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and no/ 100) submitted by Imari Oliver( Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the amount of

125.00( One Hundred Twenty Five Dollars and no/ 1001;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina,
that:

1)  The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of North
Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269.

2)  The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of general

circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and
shall state the terns under which the offer may be upset.

3)  Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to the
office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal business hours
within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10- day period, the Finance
Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new offer. If there is more
than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new offer.

4)  If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be
published, and shall continue to do so until a 10- day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid
having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City Council.

5)  A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent ( 10%) of the first
1, 000. 00 of that offer and five percent( 5%) of the remainder of that offer.

6)  A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent ( 5%) of
the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier' s check, or certified check. The city will return the
deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying
higher bid is received. The city will return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing.

7)  The terns of the final sale are:

a)  City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30
days after the final upset bid period has passed.

b)  The Wayne County Board of Commissioners must approve the final sale by concurrence after final
approval by City Council.

c)  Buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing.

d)  Buyer must pay closing costs.
8)  The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is

accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids.
9)  If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby



accepted. City staff is authorized to seek concurrence from the Wayne County Board of Commissioners
and upon such approval, the appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the instruments necessary
to convey the property to Offeror.

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 13 day of

Joh 2020.

Mayor

Attested by:

CityCle



O













P





RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 3 6

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION

TO THE NC DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR WASTEWATER

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, Session Law 2020- 79 was signed into law on July 1, 2020 to

improve viability of the water and wastewater systems of certain units of local
government; 

WHEREAS, the State Water Infrastructure Authority and the Local Government
Commission has developed criteria to assess local government units and identify
distressed units; 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been designated as a distressed unit and
intends to conduct wastewater system improvements through rehabilitation of

approximately 20,000 linear feet of more than 40 -year- old sanitary sewer main; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has need for State grant assistance for the
project; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF GOLDSBORO: 

1. The City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, will complete the viable requirements in
Sec. 159G -45(b) by: 
a) Conducting an asset assessment and rate study. 
b) Participate in a training and education program. 
c) Develop a short- term and long-term action plan considering all of the

following: infrastructure repair, maintenance, and management; continuing
education of the governing board and system operating staff, and, long-term
financial management plan. 

2. That the City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, acknowledges that the State Water
Infrastructure Authority and Local Government Commission can impose specific
conditions on grants from the Viable Utility Reserve. 

3. That the City of Goldsboro will provide adequate access to staff, documents, 
equipment, and other resources pertinent to complete the project, and upon

completion of the project provide good faith effort to implement the short- term

and long-term plan to achieve viable utility infrastructure measures. 

4. That Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby
authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the City of Goldsboro
with the State of North Carolina for a grant to aide in the completion of the

project described above. 

5. That Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby
authorized and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State

agency may request in connection with such application or the project: to make



the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may
be required in connection with the application. 

6. That the City of Goldsboro has substantially complied or will substantially
comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances

applicable to the project and to Federal and State grants pertaining thereto. 

7. Adopted this the IT "- day of Pr l 2022 at City Hall, 
Goldsboro, North Carolina. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

id Ham, Aayor



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 37
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION

TO THE NC DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR 2019 WATER

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

WHEREAS, Session Law 2020- 79 was signed into law on July 1, 2020 to

improve viability of the water and wastewater systems of certain units of local
government; 

WHEREAS, the State Water Infrastructure Authority and the Local Government
Commission has developed criteria to assess local government units and identify
distressed units; 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been designated as a distressed unit and
intends to switch our current loan to a grant for the 2019 Water Improvements Project; 
and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has need for State grant assistance for the
proj ect; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF GOLDSBORO: 

1. The City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, will complete the viable requirements in
Sec. 159G -45(b) by: 
a) Conducting an asset assessment and rate study. 
b) Participate in a training and education program. 
c) Develop a short- term and long-term action plan considering all of the

following: infrastructure repair, maintenance, and management; continuing
education of the governing board and system operating staff; and, long-term
financial management plan. 

2. That the City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, acknowledges that the State Water
Infrastructure Authority and Local Government Commission can impose specific
conditions on grants from the Viable Utility Reserve. 

3. That the City of Goldsboro will provide adequate access to staff, documents, 
equipment, and other resources pertinent to complete the project, and upon

completion of the project provide good faith effort to implement the short- term

and long-term plan to achieve viable utility infrastructure measures. 

4. That Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby
authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the City of Goldsboro
with the State of North Carolina for a grant to aide in the completion of the

project described above. 

5. That Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby
authorized and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State

agency may request in connection with such application or the project: to make



the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may
be required in connection with the application. 

6. That the City of Goldsboro has substantially complied or will substantially
comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances
applicable to the project and to Federal and State grants pertaining thereto. 

r< 

7. Adopted this the Iday of At r 2022 at City Hall, 
Goldsboro, North Carolina. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cler

Ham, ayor



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 3o

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION

TO THE NC DIVISION OF WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FOR REIMBURSEMENT

OF DESIGN FEES FOR THE 2017 WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, Session Law 2020- 79 was signed into law on July 1, 2020 to

improve viability of the water and wastewater systems of certain units of local
government; 

WHEREAS, the State Water Infrastructure Authority and the Local Government
Commission has developed criteria to assess local government units and identify
distressed units; 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been designated as a distressed unit and
intends to apply for reimbursement of design fees paid out to The Wooten Company for
the 2017 Water System Improvements Project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has need for State grant assistance for the
project; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF GOLDSBORO: 

The City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, will complete the viable requirements in
Sec. 159G -45( b) by: 
a) Conducting an asset assessment and rate study. 
b) Participate in a training and education program. 
c) Develop a short- term and long- term action plan considering all of the

following: infrastructure repair, maintenance, and management; continuing

education of the governing board and system operating staff, and, long- term
financial management plan. 

2. That the City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, acknowledges that the State Water
Infrastructure Authority and Local Government Commission can impose specific
conditions on grants from the Viable Utility Reserve. 

3. That the City of Goldsboro will provide adequate access to staff, documents, 
equipment, and other resources pertinent to complete the project, and upon

completion of the project provide good faith effort to implement the short- term

and long- term plan to achieve viable utility infrastructure measures. 

4. That Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby
authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the City of Goldsboro
with the State of North Carolina for a grant to aide in the completion of the
project described above. 

5. That Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager, and successors so titled, is hereby
authorized and directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State

agency may request in connection with such application or the project: to make



the assurances as contained above; and to execute such other documents as may
be required in connection with the application. 

6. That the City of Goldsboro has substantially complied or will substantially
comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances

applicable to the project and to Federal and State grants pertaining thereto. 

7. Adopted this the D day of i 2022 at City Hall, 
Goldsboro, North Carolina. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cler

i

4W, Ham,Mai rO



Q



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 — 3 % 

RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF A CONTRACT FOR THE HOME -ARP ALLOCATION PLAN

WHEREAS, The City of Goldsboro seeks consultant services to produce an
Allocation Plan describing the planned use of federal funds for housing and community
development purposes throughout the city; and

WHEREAS, This Allocation Plan will be directly aligned with the federal
requirements of U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ( HUD); and

WHEREAS, Washington Business Dynamics proposes an engagement of several
months to manage the process of soliciting resident and stakeholder engagement, produce

an Allocation Plan, and work with City staff to create a final plan suitable for City
Council approval and submission to HUD. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a
contract not to exceed $ 33, 290 with Washington Business Dynamics, for the HOME - 
ARP Allocation Plan. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
18th

day of
April, 2022. 

Attested by: 

City Clerk

r

vid Ham

Mayor



R















S







































T



















U



1 
June 2021 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO  
SPECIAL EVENTS/PARADE/STREET CLOSING 

PERMIT APPLICATION
**In the event of a street closing or carnival, an application should be submitted at least 

30 days prior to your parade or special event. 

I. General Information
Type of Event: (please check all that apply)  
 Parade  Run/Walk  Festival  Street Closure  Carnival  Other (explain): ________________

Event Name:            __

Event Date(s):       Event Website:     

Inclement Weather/Rain Date(s):         __

Description of Event (Please briefly describe the event.)

             

             
 
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Requested Event Location:       ________ ______

Event Start Time/End Time:      

Set-Up:  Date & Time (start/end):         

Dismantle (Completion): Date & Time (start/end):   

Estimated Daily Attendance:     ______

Will this event require street closures?   Yes  No    Closure Times________________

If yes, please list the streets that you are requesting to be closed:

II. Applicant and Sponsoring Organization Information
Sponsoring Organization Name:      ______ 

Are you a non-profit? � Yes   � No   If yes, are you:  � 501c (3)   � 501c (6)  � Place of worship

Applicant Name:       Title:       

Address:    ______ 

City:    State:  Zip: ____    _ Phone:  

Cell Phone:   Email: and   info@ncfreedomfest.org_____  

    Date of Application ______________ 
       (Inner Office Use Only) 

NC FREEDOM FEST

200 N Center Street to 200 S Center Street

www.ncfreedomfest.org

n/a

5/21/22: 9 pm - 11 pm

5/20/22: Intersections: Spruce/Center & Chestnut/Center (5 pm - 9 pm) (Block between the Hub & Fire/Police Complex)

NC Freedom Fest / City of Goldsboro

Marketing & Special Events Supervisor - COG P&R

919-922-5687 jwalker@goldsboronc.gov

Jordan Walker

901 E. Ash Street

Goldsboro NC 27530 910-247-0772

5/20/22: 5 pm - 9 pm
5/21/22: 12 pm - 9 pm

May 20th & 21st, 2022

5/20/22: 6 pm - 9 pm; 5/20/22: 4 pm - 9 pm

5/20/22: 2500; 5/21/22: 7-10,000

5/20/22: 7 am - Until (Site Set-Up ONLY Large Lot); 5/21/22: 7 am - 4 pm Site Set-Up

Our mission is to celebrate military personnel with an inclusive, family-friendly festival honoring all who serve in the 
United States Armed Forces. Beginning on Friday night, the kids zone (inflatables) will open in the large empty lot on S.Center,
during which time we will also have a "Grub at the Hub event" featuring the band "Soul Psychedelique," as well as food vendors.
The following day, the main event (festival) will feature the same kids zone (inflatables), food trucks, live entertainment,  
feature street fair vendors, food trucks, the mt. olive pickle train, and a car and bike show. 

5/19/21: 8 am - Until (Site Set-Up ONLY in Large Lot; Not Affecting Traffic)

5/21/22: All of Center Street between Ash & Spruce, including the following intersections: Mulberry/Center, Walnut/Center, Chestnut/Center, Spruce/
Center (12 pm - 9 pm). Additionally, request for Spruce Street between Center/James Street to be closed from 12 pm - 9 pm, and Chestnut Street 
between James & John to be closed from 12 pm - 9 pm. 

gpspowers
Sticky Note
5/20/2022 6pm - 9pm; 5/21/2022 4pm - 9pm

gpspowers
Sticky Note
5/20/2022

gpspowers
Sticky Note
5/21/2022



2
June 2021 

Day of Event Contact: 

Name:     Phone: _910-247-0772

III. Event Map

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- FORMATION AREA LOCATION:   _______   

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnivals- STARTING POINT: ________ 

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- ENDING POINT: ______  

*Please provide a detailed map of your event, including race/walk/parade route(s), stage(s),
inflatables, rides, booths, tents, parking, etc.  (Please attach additional pages as needed.)

IV. RESTROOMS & SITE CLEANUP (Bathroom facilities are required for events
lasting longer than two hours and must be ADA compliant.)

One Port-A-Jon is recommended per 100 people, and is based on event duration
instead of number of participants.

How do you plan to handle restroom services? □ Portable Toilets □ Other
If portable toilets will be provided, please list the name/contact of the company:
 

_______________________________________________________________________________

If no portable toilets will be provided, how will these requirements be handled?

_______________________________________________________________________________

How do you plan to remove garbage and/or recycling? (City receptacles must be requested separately
no less than 30 days prior to the event. Contact the Public Works Department at 919-750-7450.)
 

_______________________________________________________________________________

Jordan Walker

Parks Portable Toilets 919-735-9402

Parks & Recreation Maintenance Staff

Kids Zone: 200 S. Center (Large Open Lot)

See Detailed Maps: 
2022 NC Freedom Fest Map + Timeline
 2022 NC Freedom Fest Site Map

Also Attached: 
Picture of Vendor Set Up (10x10 Spaces - Limit 40 - Northbound Lane of Center Street, not inhibiting safe flow of 
pedestrian traffic or in case of emergency.)

Picture of Car Show Set Up - Cars in Spaces on Center Street, not inhibiting safe flow of pedestrian traffic or in case 
of emergency.

Picture of Food Vendor Set Up, with water pipes depicted in image. 

Copy of Street Closure Notice for Residents, Visitors, Downtown Merchants

Copy of Special Event Insurance (Will be supplied later, ASAP).
DGDC will be supplying the Alcohol permit,and MOPR will be supplying insurance for pickle train

If any supplemental information (or pictures) are needed, feel free to contact me - Jordan Walker, 
jwalker@goldsboronc.gov, info@ncfreedomfest.org, or 910-247-0772

Note: 
Entertainment will take place in large lots on 2 stages; SJAFB Stage & City Stage, from 4 pm - 9 
pm, as well as in the crosswalk on the west side of the fountain at the intersection of mulberry/
center on a small platform from 4 pm - 5:30 pm. 
Pickle Train will operate from 4 pm - 7:15 pm in barricaded/blocked spruce street between 
James & Center.



3 
June 2021 

V. Event Details:  Please answer the following questions regarding your event.

 Yes    No Does the event involve the sale of food?
 Yes    No   Does the event involve the sale of alcohol?

If “YES” has the health department been notified? 
 For events with food, a letter from the health department must be submitted 30 days

prior to the event.
o Health Department: (919) 731-1000

 The ABC Permit, issued by the NC ABC Commission, must be submitted to the
Goldsboro Police Department prior to the event.  The event permit will not be issued
until the ABC Permit is submitted.

o NC ABC Commission: (919) 779-0700

 Yes    No Will there be musical entertainment at your event? 
If “YES”, please provide the following information: 

 Amplification?  � Yes   � No
Note: Any Live or Loud Music cannot begin prior to 10am, must end by 10pm and is 
subject to all city noise ordinances, unless approved in advance by the Goldsboro 
City Council.  Please contact the City of Goldsboro Planning Department at 919-580-
4333 for questions regarding City Ordinances.  

 Yes    No Will there be any tents or canopies in the proposed event site? If “YES”, please provide the 
following information: 

 Approximate Number of tents:   

 Approximate Sizes:    

 Will any tent exceed 400 sq. feet in area?     � Yes   � No

Note: It is the renter’s responsibility to contact the Inspections Department to 
arrange for all tent inspections that are required by City of Goldsboro ordinance. A 
permit is required when using any type of tent.  

 City of Goldsboro Inspections Department (919) 580-4385

 Yes    No Will you require electrical hook-ups for this event? (Please note that electrical availability is 
limited.) 

 Yes    No Will admission fees be charged to attend this event? 
If “YES”, provide the cost(s) of all tickets: ______________________ 

 Yes    No Will fees be charged to vendors to participate in this event? 
If ‘YES”, please provide the schedule of fees:    ______________________ 

 Yes    No   Applicant has read, in its entirety, the City of Goldsboro Use of City-Owned Property for 
Special Events Policy. The Policy Regarding the Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events 
is available at http://www.goldsboronc.gov/special-events/. 

*The temporary closing of a NC Department of Transportation Street would be at the discretion of the NC
Department of Transportation.

VI. Miscellaneous:
Parking:

• How will overall patron parking be accommodated for this event?      

______________ 

Note:  You may be required to provide a shuttle if the event places undue demands on surrounding parking areas. 

80
10 x 10 ; 40 x 40

Possible, not guaranteed

Food, Artisans, & Commercial: $125; Informational: $100

Available Downtown parking lots

http://www.goldsboronc.gov/special-events/


4 
June 2021 

Special Information and Conditions of receiving a Special Event/Parade Permit: 
 
Insurance: 

  

General Liability Insurance coverage of at least $1 million that holds the City and its taxpayers harmless from claims 
arising out of operation of the event. This Proof of insurance or applicable rider MUST be attached before submitting. 
Contact your insurance provider for assistance. If the event requires additional insurance, the Finance Director will 
notify the Police Department and City Manager’s Office. Some events, such as carnivals, require a minimum of $5 
million dollars in either general liability insurance or umbrella insurance coverage to be determined at the 
discretion of the city manager and shall be in place at the time such structure is to be occupied or such place of 
assembly is established for use by the public. The City shall be added as an additional insured on said policy 
for any and all relevant times to the operation and/or carnival presence.  
 
Application Fee: 
An application fee of $25.00 for special events and $50.00 for parades will be required at the time the application is 
submitted unless the permit is denied. This non-refundable fee is to be in the form of a check made payable to the 
City of Goldsboro.   
 
Event Cancellation: 
At this time, we do not anticipate canceling any events already permitted, however with ongoing national security 
concerns and the possible unavailability of city and police resources, this could occur. If this action is necessary, 
applicants will be given notice in a timely manner. New requests may be denied or adjusted for the same reason. 
 

Public Safety:  
The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to require security and medical personnel for your event. 
 

Police: The Goldsboro Police Department shall determine the number of police officers needed to appropriately 
manage security, as well as the time when such services shall commence.  The Applicant may be responsible for 
hiring and paying off-duty law enforcement officers, or reimbursing the City of Goldsboro for the costs of providing on-
duty law enforcement officers, to appropriately manage the event. Please contact the City of Goldsboro’s Police 
Department Off-Duty Coordinator at 919-580-4236, option 3.  

 

Prohibited Items: 
No firearms or illegal drugs are allowed. 
 

Policy of Non-Discrimination: 
City facilities are available on a non-discriminatory basis. Appropriate activities need to accommodate individuals 
regardless of age, sex, race, color, religion, national origin, physical or mental disabilities, affection preference or 
marital status. The City of Goldsboro does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission, access, treatment 
or employment in its programs or activities. 
 

Additional Rules Pertaining to Events: 
1. Vehicles will only be in designated parking areas.  
2. All animals must be leashed as outlined in COG Code of Ordinances 91.15;91.18.  
3. Applicant will respect neighboring property/business owners with respect to noise. 
4. Applicant understands that it will not be the responsibility of the Police Department to relocate vehicles parked 

along any portions of the streets to be closed prior to the event. 
5. Applicant is required to ensure the areas used are clean and free of debris.  Please note that there will be a 

cleaning fee charged if the area is not clean.  
 

Alcoholic Beverages: 
(If consumption of alcohol is planned on property for event, the following additional requirements MUST be met.)  

1. All necessary ABC permits must be issued by the State and copies are provided with this application. 
2. Signs shall be posted and visible at all exit points at the special event stating that it is unlawful to remove 

alcoholic beverages in opened or sealed containers from the premises. 
3. Areas where alcohol will be consumed, served or sold must clearly be defined and delineated on the premises 

by barricades, caution tape or other acceptable means. 



5 
June 2021 

4. All necessary ABC permits must be issued by the State and copies provided with this application. Follow steps
outlined at www.abc.nc.gov/permits.

5. Off-duty law enforcement officers are required to be on-site if alcohol is present at the event. The number of
officers required will be determined by the Goldsboro Police Department.

** Submitting this Special Event/Parade Permit Application does not provide permission to conduct your 
planned event. Please do not send out publicity, flyers, or other media prior to receiving confirmation of 
approval. Your confirmation will be in the form of a Permit, issued to the organization and/or person 
responsible for conducting the event.  

**For street closing applications: the Goldsboro Police Department will notify the applicant when the 
Goldsboro City Council has approved the permit.  

Agreement 

I have read and understand this application and the requirements placed upon this applicant and organization. I 
agree to abide by the City of Goldsboro rules, regulations and ordinances should my permit application be 
approved.  I will fulfill the requirements placed upon this permit application.  

Authorized Signature: Date:   

Organization:          

Please return this application and all supporting documentation by email, mail or in person to: 
Goldsboro Police Department  
Community Police Services   
204 S. Center Street 
Goldsboro, NC 27530  
spowers@goldsboronc.gov 

CANCELLATION POLICY: Written notification of intent to cancel your event must be received in writing a minimum 
of 21 days prior to the scheduled event date to Sgt. Steven Powers at spowers@goldsboronc.gov. 

For Inner Office Use Only: 

____________________________________ __________________ 
Goldsboro Police Department Representative Date  

____________________________________ __________________ 
Downtown Goldsboro Representative    Date 

________________________________ ________________ 
Finance Director  Date 

________________________________ ________________ 
City Manager’s Signature  Date 
(Use of City Owned Lots/Non-Street Closings and Carnivals) 

4/7/22

NC Freedom Fest / City of Goldsboro Parks & Recreation

http://www.abc.nc.gov/permits
mailto:spowers@goldsboronc.gov


6 
June 2021 

 Special Event Release of Liability Waiver 

The undersigned person is applying for Use of City-Owned Property for Special Event on behalf of 

 from the City of Goldsboro and hereby agrees to indemnify 

and hold the City of Goldsboro, its officers, agents and employees harmless from all claims, liabilities, demands, 

expenses, of any nature or kind, expresses or implied, whether sounding in tort or in contract that may be asserted 

against the City, its officials, agents and employees by any person, firm, or corporation, that may arise out of any 

acts or omissions, active or passive, related to operating an event on the city’s property. 

This the      day of           , 20 ____. 

 (SEAL) 

 (Applicant & Authorized Representative of Event) 

This form must be completed, signed and returned with the completed application. 

NC Freedom Fest / City of Goldsboro

7th April 22



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

4/18/2022

(919) 778-9400 (919) 751-2142

NC Freedom Fest
PO Box 562
Goldsboro, NC 27533

A 2,000,000

X EV8612 5/19/2022 5/22/2022 300,000

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

NC Freedom Fest held 5/19-23/2022 at The Hub and Center Street, Goldsboro, NC,
The City of Goldsboro and Sister Hazel are additional Insured.

The City of Goldsboro
200 N. Center Street
Goldsboro, NC 27530

NCFREED-01 LMUSSELMAN

Crawford-Henderson, Inc.
PO Box 10885
Goldsboro, NC 27532 contact@crawhen.com

Philadelphia Insurance Co.

X
X















V





















Item _W__

























City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

March 2022 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater-GEC

10. Parks and Recreation
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item X



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
March 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  April 4, 2022 
 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for its regular monthly meeting on March 18th, but 

did not have a quorum.  The MCPD Disability Walk Subcommittee met in person on March 8th.   
 

• On March 6th, the Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for its regular monthly 
meeting, to include a scheduled Public Meeting for the FY22 Annual Action Plan.  There was no quorum, therefore 
the regular meeting and public meeting were not held.  The CCRD Executive Board did not meet in March.  The CCRD 
hosted a Women’s History/Black History month event on March 26th.    
 

• Goldsboro Youth Council (GYC) held its regular meeting on March 2nd.  GYC participated and provided volunteer 
service for SJAFB’s Softball Tournament/Family Field Day on March 26th. 

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff supported the 2022 Citizens Academy sessions on March 3rd and March 10th.  
2. By invitation, Staff attended Clergy Day at SJAFB on March 1st. 
3. Staff attended the initial planning meeting for Freedom Fest 2022 on March 3rd. 
4. Staff facilitated the initial planning meeting for Juneteenth 2022 on March 14th.  
5. Staff attended a Utility Assistance virtual meeting w/CM, COG staff, and other municipalities on March 31st. 

 
• Community Development Activities:  

1. Staff attended Community Development Academy (UNC-SOG) on March 2nd, 9th, 16th, 23rd, and 30th.   
2. Staff completed an internal audit of CDBG-CV files on March 4th.   
3. Staff attended the monthly Region 10 Continuum of Care meeting virtually on March 9th.       
4. Staff facilitated Community Development training with department staff on March 9th and March 10th.   
5. Staff attended an Affordable Housing Webinar on March 15th.  
6. Staff met with Thomas Rice/MLFL, Inc. to review application for CDBG-CV funding on March 15th.  
7. Staff attended a virtual HUD All Grantee meeting on March 16th.  
8. Staff met with Public Information Officer to work on AAP 22-23 Needs Assessment Survey on March 3rd. 
9. Staff completed a draft of the FY22 Annual Action Plan.  The plan was made available to the public on March 30th  
    and will be available for review for 30 days. 
10. Staff engaged in 5 phone/virtual consults with HUD Representative for the month of March.      

      11. Staff engaged in 4 consults with Procurement Manager for the month of March. 
 

• The Department received zero (0) housing complaints and twenty-five (25) requests for assistance for the month of 
March. *Please refer to Community Relations Addendum for a detailed summary.   

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0          0 
Consumer & Other 24 36 25          7 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT Addendum 
March 2022 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  April 4, 2022 
 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

None  
 
 
 
Assistance with Resources 
 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 15 Referred to Hope 
Restoration & Habitat’s 
Rehabilitation Program 

First-Time Homebuyer 6 Provided application 
packet 

Back taxes 1 Referred to Wayne 
County Tax Office 

Rent-Utility-Housing 
Assistance 

1 Provided Community 
Resource List 

Summer Youth 
Employment 

2 Referred to Parks & 
Recreation 

Total Requests: 25  
 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
March 2022 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: April 14, 2022 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 18 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interests regarding downtown. 

• Over the past month, staff visited downtown businesses 50+ times.   
• DGDC Annual Campaign – completed on March 25 
• Committee Work Plan Task Review & Assignments 
• Merchant/Property Information Management Review and Research for Current Project 
• New Website Development – Intended Rollout Pending Content Management Software Decision 
• Economic Development Assessment Planning  

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• COG 22/23 FY budget prep & year-end spending planning 

• Rehab Development Project Completed – The View at Wayne National Bank 

• GWTA Concourse Roof Addition Grant Agreement Update & Exploration of Additional Funding  

• Tiger Grant Reporting 

• Continued preparation and restoration on the new DGDC office – anticipated completion month, May 

• Preparation for new Marketing & Administrative Assistant – Start date, April 20.  
• Departure of Business & Property Development Specialist – last day April 8. Position posted on April 12. 

• Potential Arts District discussions and public forum planning - April 
• Economic Development Assessment work group scheduled to meet in late April 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• Downtown Beautification Project in JC Penney Parking Lot on April 2. 20 Volunteers participated. 
• Facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings: DGDC Board Meeting (3/16) , DGDC Executive 

Committee Meeting 3/9) ,DGDC Design (3/8), DGDC EV (3/8), DGDC Merchants Committee Meeting (3/1), and 
DGDC Promotions Committee Meeting (3/8)   

• Center Street Jam promotion began. Applications being completed for ABC permit and HUB use. Vendor & 
volunteer recruiting 

• NC Freedom Fest planning to assist with volunteer management and merchandise sales. 
Upcoming Events/Activities:  

• Litter Sweep planned for April 30th.   
• Website redesign for smooth integration of businesses and properties.  
• Goldsboro Union Station Adaptive Reuse – soliciting appraisals.  
• Grant solicitations for Duke Energy & Wells Fargo 
• Downtown Events in April/May – Greater Goldsboro Road Race, Mayor’s Committee with Disabilities Walk, 

Three Eagles Beer Fest, NC Freedom Fest, Dillard Alumni Parade 
Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 

• Shopper’s Delight opened at 129 E. Walnut St. – Ribbon Cutting April 12th 
• Barrister’s Loft AirBnB coming in April 
• Chubby’s Ribbon Cutting planned for April 18th 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes: 13,531  



GOLDSBORO 
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
March2022 
Prepared by: B obby Croom, P. E. 
Date Prepared: 4-8-22 

Stoney Creek Greenway 

North Carolina 

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600
linear feet;

• Staff submitted final plans and specifications for NCDOT approval.

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• Project is complete with the exception of receiving final pay application from the contractor.

2017 Wastewater System Improvements - FB202Q-QQ2 
• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash

Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street;
and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital
campus;

• Project is 99% complete;
• Staff working with contractor on final payment.

Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk 
• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to

Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street;
• Construction plans are 90% complete;
• This project is temporarily on hold.

2019 Water Improvements Project 
• The Wooten Company engineering agreement provides services for preliminary engineering report

and environmental report for substandard City of Goldsboro water lines;
• PER/EID Report approved by DWI;
• Staff coordinating with DWI to move project from loan to grant status.

Little/Bi&: Cherry Pump Station Relocation and Improvement 
• WithersRavenel engineering agreement provides services for project management, engineering

report and environmental information documentation for Little/Big Cherry Pump Station;
• PER/EID Report submitted to DWI for review and approval;
• Project is a candidate to be included in the Mount Olive Pickle Plant Expansion Project

Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections 
• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date;
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections were completed for March 2022.

1 
www.goldsboronc.gov 



Phase III Wastewater System Improvements 
• Staff is coordinating application to secure grant funding, preparation of design, and permits.

Water System Asset Inventory and Assessment 
• Kick off meeting has occurred with WithersRavenel starting project work.

Wastewater System Asset Inventory and Assessment 
• Kick off meeting has occurred with WithersRavenel starting project work.

Wayne County Utility Mereer/Reeionalization Feasibility 
• Contract being routed to officially start the project.

Stormwater Inventory Project 
• Kick off meeting has been held with CDM Smith;

• Staff is working with the engineering firm for preliminary project data.

2" Galvanized Water Line Project 
• Staff is working with The Wooten Company to have the project converted from a loan to ARPA grant

funding.

Water Treatment Plant Assessment 
• Staff routed contract and sent PO to WithersRavenel and their sub-consultant, Summit Engineering.

2 www.goldsboronc.gov 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
MARCH 2022 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: April 11, 2022 
 

 

FY 20-21
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues February-21 Adjusted Budget February-22 Collected
General Fund 28,776,027$    45,835,802$        34,040,597$    74.27%
Utility Fund 12,396,030      20,745,218          13,500,935      65.08%
Downtown District Fund 82,976             95,174                 89,477             94.01%
Occupancy Tax Fund 638,504           1,139,668            701,011           61.51%
Stormwater Fund 1,042,909        2,216,200            1,353,689        61.08%
     Total 42,936,444$    70,032,062$        49,685,709$    70.95%

Expenditures
General Fund 25,280,885$    45,835,802$        26,817,435$    58.51%
Utility Fund 9,538,569        20,745,218 8,820,138 42.52%
Downtown District Fund 18,456             95,174 64,991             68.29%
Occupancy Tax Fund 669,729           1,139,668 713,586 62.61%
Stormwater Fund 743,742           2,216,200 1,572,805 70.97%
     Total 36,251,380$    70,032,062$        37,988,955$    54.25%

FY 20-21
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

February-21 Adjusted Budget February-22 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 16,752,501$    18,876,693$        17,570,928$    93.08%
Charges for Services 16,041,005      23,836,557          16,887,937      70.85%
Revenue Other Agencies 6,414,004        19,483,742          7,359,451        37.77%
Other Revenues 1,443,717        3,282,836            5,461,513        166.37%
Fund Balance -                   1,344,394            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 2,285,218        3,207,840            2,405,880        75.00%
     Total 42,936,444$    70,032,062$        49,685,709$    70.95%

Expenditures
Labor 19,571,969$    32,073,685$        19,483,068$    60.74%
Non-Labor 16,679,411      37,958,377          18,505,887      48.75%
     Total 36,251,380$    70,032,062$        37,988,955$    54.25%

FY 20-21 Actual Total 
Collections Actual February-22 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 44,690$           891$                     5,037$             
Surplus 58,361$           -$                      52,153$           

FY 21-22

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 21-22

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2021 through March, 2022

Department Department Head Account Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
City Manager Timothy Salmon 2203 Employee Christmas Party (58)$                       
City Manager Timothy Salmon 4918 National League Of Cities 58$                    

Transfers - Mar 2022 - City Manager 58$                    (58)$                      

Human Resources Bernadette Dove 3121 Travel 1,000$               
Human Resources Bernadette Dove 3425 Health Fair (1,000)$                 

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Human Resources 1,000$              (1,000)$                 

Paramount Adam Twis 1275 Salaries & Wages Bonus 1,550$               
Paramount Adam Twis 2121 Uniforms (200)$                    
Paramount Adam Twis 2601 Office Supplies (200)$                    
Paramount Adam Twis 2926 Food & Beverage Resale-PARAMOUNT 500$                  
Paramount Adam Twis 2993 Operational Supplies 1,000$               
Paramount Adam Twis 3121 Travel (500)$                    
Paramount Adam Twis 3210 Telephone 400$                  
Paramount Adam Twis 3330 Natural Gas (1,000)$                 
Paramount Adam Twis 3700 Advertising (1,550)$                 
Paramount Adam Twis 1262 Salaries & Wages Perm. Part-Time (2,250)$                 
Paramount Adam Twis 1220 Salaries & Wages Overtime 2,250$               

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Paramount 5,700$              (5,700)$                 

GEC Felicia Brown 1260 Salaries & Wages Part-Time 3,000$               
GEC Felicia Brown 1262 Salaries & Wages Perm. Part-Time (3,000)$                 

Transfers - Mar 2022 - GEC 3,000$              (3,000)$                 

PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher 2993 Operational Supplies (18)$                       
PW Cemetery Rick Fletcher 3321 Heating Fuel 18$                    

Transfers - Mar 2022 - PW Cemetery 18$                    (18)$                      

Finance Catherine Gwynn 1275 Salaries & Wages Bonus 6,343$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 1280 Vacation Pay Out 104$                  
Finance Catherine Gwynn 1932 Medical Exams 288$                  
Finance Catherine Gwynn 2323 Other Training 1,506$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 2601 Office Supplies 1,336$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 2993 Operational Supplies 4,200$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 3121 Travel 1,207$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 3210 Telephone 1,367$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 3250 Postage 71$                    
Finance Catherine Gwynn 3410 Printing 1,350$               

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY22 Transfer Summary Mar 4/11/2022 6:27 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2021 through March, 2022

Department Department Head Account Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Finance Catherine Gwynn 3950 Education Reimbursement 2,500$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 9561 Office Supplies 200$                  
Finance Catherine Gwynn 1911 Audit (21,857)$               
Finance Catherine Gwynn 2912 Data Processing Forms 977$                  
Finance Catherine Gwynn 3812 Cash Over/Short 303$                  
Finance Catherine Gwynn 4531 Security Bonds 105$                  

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Finance 21,857$            (21,857)$              

PW Streets Rick Fletcher 2993 Operational Supplies (142)$                    
PW Streets Rick Fletcher 5672 Utility Trailer 142$                  

Transfers - Mar 2022 - PW Streets 142$                  (142)$                    

Fire Ron Stempien 2391 First Aid 528$                  
Fire Ron Stempien 2993 Operational Supplies (528)$                    
Fire Ron Stempien 3421 Copy Machine Cost 900$                  
Fire Ron Stempien 3521 Office Machine Maintenance (900)$                    

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Fire 1,428$              (1,428)$                 

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown 1932 Medical Exams 400$                  
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown 2111 Cleaning Supplies (3,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown 2601 Office Supplies (400)$                    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown 2989 Operational Supplies - Maint. (4,000)$                 
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown 2993 Operational Supplies 10,000$            
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown 3522 Machine/Equipment Maintenance (10,000)$               
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown 3914 Contract Services 7,000$               

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Parks & Recreation 17,400$            (17,400)$              

Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 1932 Medical Exams 69$                    
Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 2502 Vehicle Fuel 17$                    
Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 2993 Operational Supplies (14,536)$               
Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 3121 Travel (6,500)$                 
Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 3593 Street Repairs 6,500$               
Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 2501A Vehicle Maintenance-Fleet Charges 20,000$            
Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 5697 Pipe Inspection Camara 14,450$            
Distribution & CollectionRick Fletcher 3523 Fire Hydrants/Water Valve Repl (20,000)$               

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Distribution & Collections 41,036$            (41,036)$              

Water Treatment Bert Sherman 3522 Machine/Equipment Maintenance (55)$                       
Water Treatment Bert Sherman 5401 Administrative Car 55$                    

Budget Transfers Summary FY22 Transfer Summary Mar 4/11/2022 6:27 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2021 through March, 2022

Department Department Head Account Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Water Treatment 55$                    (55)$                      

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman 3511 Building Maintenance 6,000$               
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman 3522 Machine/Equipment Maintenance (8,400)$                 
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman 5401 Administrative Car 2,400$               

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Water Reclamation 8,400$              (8,400)$                 

Compost Bert Sherman 3511 Building Maintenance (8,000)$                 
Compost Bert Sherman 4391 Equipment Rent 8,000$               

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Compost 8,000$              (8,000)$                 

Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca 2993 Operational Supplies 1,605$               
Downtown MSD Erin Fonseca 2113 Beautification Program (1,605)$                 

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Downtown MSD 1,605$              (1,605)$                 

Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice 1932 Medical Exams 125$                  
Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice 2993 Operational Supplies 3,000$               
Occupancy Tax Amanda Justice 3410 Printing (3,125)$                 

Transfers - Mar 2022 - Occupancy Tax 3,125$              (3,125)$                 

Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Mar 2022 112,824$          (112,824)$            
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2021-Mar 2022 638,526$          (638,526)$            

Budget Transfers Summary FY22 Transfer Summary Mar 4/11/2022 6:27 PM



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report - Mar 2022
Prepared: 4/11/20226:29 PM
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget 
Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to 

Date 
 Current 

Amount Spent  

 Amount 
Spent to 

Project to 
Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) 
Cash Flow Note

Granting 
Agency Grant Description Dept

F 8/27/2019 328,479$        328,479$        -$                 247,706$        -$                 317,270$        (69,564)$         HUD FY19-20 Entitlement Comm. Rel.
F 8/27/2019 214,732$        214,732$        -$                 -$                 89,438$          (89,438)$         HUD FY19-20 Entitlement Comm. Rel.
F 10/7/2020 351,137$        351,137$        -$                 210,577$        -$                 230,726$        (20,148)$         HUD FY20-21 Entitlement Comm. Rel.
F 10/7/2020 237,076$        237,076$        -$                 (35,000)$         37,377$          (37,377)$         HUD FY20-21 Entitlement Comm. Rel.
F 10/7/2020 206,654$        206,654$        -$                 31,056$          119$                49,824$          (18,767)$         HUD FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2) Comm. Rel.
F 9/11/2020 220,749$        220,749$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 HUD FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 3) Comm. Rel.
F 907,913$        907,913$        -$                 -$                 331$                331$                (331)$               HUD ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Comm. Rel.
S 4/18/2019 100,000$        100,000$        -$                 96,570$          -$                 108,965$        (12,395)$         NCHFA Urgent Repair Comm. Rel.
S 1/24/2017 150,000$        150,000$        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 NCHFA ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool Comm. Rel.
F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$     4,604,077$     -$                 4,530,644$     -$                 4,179,246$     351,397$        FEMA Hurricane Florence Finance
F Ongoing 188,813$        200,815$        -$                 217,343$        5,611$             77,891$          139,451$        DOJ Federal Forfeiture Police
S 1/3/2019 21,366$          21,366$          -$                 18,408$          -$                 18,408$          -$                 DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Police
F 9/25/2019 47,003$          47,003$          -$                 28,120$          -$                 28,120$          -$                 DOJ 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Police
F 9/19/2020 34,766$          34,766$          -$                 13,906$          -$                 13,906$          -$                 DOJ 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Police
F 6/8/2020 108,628$        108,628$        -$                 64,822$          -$                 84,666$          (19,844)$         DOJ FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Police
F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$     7,189,383$     -$                 7,385,809$     -$                 6,527,315$     858,494$        FTA FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Downtown Dev.
F 7/24/2020 202,083$        202,083$        -$                 202,083$        -$                 202,083$        -$                 FEMA FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, 5 Fire
F 9/9/2020 966,688$        966,688$        -$                 966,688$        -$                 959,792$        6,896$             UST/Wayne Co CARES Act Funding City Manager
F 10/6/2020 25,750$          25,750$          -$                 25,750$          -$                 25,750$          -$                 NC Tourism CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism T&T
F 11/18/2020 94,616$          94,616$          -$                 19,681$          -$                 19,681$          -$                 Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Parks & Rec.
F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$     8,813,514$     -$                 4,406,757$     -$                 -$                 4,406,757$     UST ARP Funding Finance
F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$     9,083,790$     -$                 4,851,571$     -$                 7,883,090$     (3,031,519)$   * SRF/DWI CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Engineering
F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$     1,259,802$     -$                 -$                 1,610$             658,361$        (658,361)$       * SRF/DWI CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Engineering
D 2010 8,605,000$     8,684,163$     -$                 8,695,113$     -$                 8,367,780$     327,333$        Debt 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Engineering
P 10/11/2017 961,307$        961,307$        -$                 598,574$        -$                 596,216$        2,357$             Goldenleaf Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. Rehab Engineering
F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$     30,000$          -$                 30,000$          -$                 30,000$          -$                 SRF/DWI Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Engineering
S 1/24/2022 300,000$        304,500$        -$                 4,500$             1,050$             1,050$             3,450$             DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004 Engineering
S 1/24/2022 100,000$        101,500$        -$                 1,500$             -$                 -$                 1,500$             DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 Engineering
F 6/6/2019 3,610,000$     3,717,200$     -$                 35,000$          -$                 265,513$        (230,513)$       SRF/DWI CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install. Engineering
F 3/7/2021 1,797,360$     2,114,307$     -$                 1,245,273$     -$                 1,519,535$     (274,262)$       SRF/DWI CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Engineering
F Not Accepted Yet 2,998,000$     30,000$          -$                 30,000$          -$                 25,000$          5,000$             SRF/DWI CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Engineering
D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$   11,150,000$   -$                 -$                 -$                 358,000$        (358,000)$       Debt Herman Park Center City Manager
P Ongoing 80,000$          80,000$          575$                32,691$          -$                 -$                 32,691$          Donation 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Fire
P Ongoing 627,393$        627,393$        -$                 492,393$        -$                 246,072$        246,321$        Donation/Gr Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Parks & Rec.
D Ongoing 5,048,522$     5,048,522$     3$                    5,046,606$     95,637$          4,980,164$     66,441$          Debt 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Engineering
D Ongoing 6,417,326$     6,417,326$     -$                 6,417,323$     -$                 6,223,717$     193,606$        Debt Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) City Manager
P Ongoing 30,166$          30,164$          1,363$             39,201$          -$                 22,668$          16,532$          Donation/Gr Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Parks & Rec.
P Ongoing 15,858$          15,858$          -$                 15,643$          -$                 14,182$          1,461$             Donation/Gr Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Comm. Rel.
P Ongoing 46,025$          46,025$          7$                    56,301$          -$                 16,741$          39,560$          Donation/Gr Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Police
C Ongoing 1,128,000$     1,128,000$     -$                 1,127,778$     1,525$             1,525$             1,126,253$     City Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects Public Works

Total 78,426,223$   75,855,285$   1,948$             47,185,386$   70,883$          44,180,404$   3,004,982$     

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report Grants 2022-03 Mar 4/12/2022 9:33 AM



Prepared Date: 4/8/22 10:24 AM
Prepared By: Kelley May
Reviewed Date: 4/12/22 5:44 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 3/31/2022 2/28/2022 3/31/2021 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 2,814,084.27$               943,834.20$                  908,487.05$                  0.00%
PNC - Money Market 10,524,904.25$            11,524,814.04$            6,524,386.05$               0.01%
PNC - Debit Account 1,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       1,000.00$                       0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 15,084,187.97$            15,082,112.68$            11,064,010.67$            0.18%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 249,743.78$                  249,727.46$                  551,472.71$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 4,407,321.50$               4,407,033.52$               
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,368,633.89$               4,368,535.40$               4,376,910.94$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Street Bonds 2018 48,080.48$                    48,077.34$                    2,058,409.26$               n/a
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow 1,650,652.30$               1,650,638.28$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 1,868,212.43$               1,868,180.26$               0.02%
Totals 41,016,820.87$           40,143,953.18$           25,484,676.68$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
March 31, 2022

Cash & Investment FY2022 03-31-22 4/12/2022 5:45 PM



 

 
 
 
 

1 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 

Total Incidents: 216 195 226 212 637

Structure Fires: 5 6 8 6 19

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 79 237

Vehicle  Accidents: 22 23 22 22 67

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 42 127

O ther: 66 53 68 62 187

Training Hours: 2709 2806 2884 2800 8399

Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 1 4

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 408

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total 

Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 240 227 229 240 244 265 237 232 2781

Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 3 3 5 6 2 7 6 5 55

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 106 84 104 86 86 82 88 89 1069

Vehicle  Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 40 33 33 33 40 40 33 35 422

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41 54 45 56 52 65 38 46 554

O ther: 54 40 59 52 65 50 53 42 59 64 71 72 57 681

Training Hours: 3006 3155 3010 2730 2029 1894 1633 1833 1600 1923 1591 1075 2123 25479

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 6 3 3 2 4 2 1 2 24

Inspections: 121 157 217 172 180 237 194 204 179 160 155 109 174 2085

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
March 2022 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien 
Date Prepared: April 8, 2022 

 The cause of fire incidents was determined 63% of the time. 37% of fire incidents were 
classified as undetermined or still under investigation.  
 

 The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:24.  
 

 The full response within 8 minutes occurred 95.6% of all calls.  
 

 66.8% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days.  
 

 There were 1 Civilian injury, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries, and 0 Fire Service 
deaths.  

 
 The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.  

 
 Fire prevention and community service activities including: Car Seat Safety Checks with 

Safe Kids of Wayne County, Smoke Detector and CO Detector Installations, Station Tours, 
Health Fair at Brookdale Berkeley, and Birthday Parades. We reached 33 Adults and 61 
Children with fire prevention materials.  

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 

 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
March 2022 
Date Prepared:  April 7, 2022    
 
 
Human Resources  

• Coordinated & Presented the New Hire Orientation on March 21, 2022 
• Reviewing Personnel Policy Update – Article III Section - Reclassifications 
• Updated New Hire Orientation Training, Evaluations, and Social Media Policy 
• Reviewed & Verified Fire Engineer Promotion process 
• Completed Neogov Training – e forms & Learn modules 
• Completed Reclassifications and New Positions for the upcoming FY22/23 budget 
• Coordinating members and  preparing for Wellness Committee meeting 
• Updated Employee Phone Directory 
• Provided assistance to employees to complete FMLA training scheduled for March 2022 
• Preparing to implement training for hiring supervisors and department heads to revamp Neogov 

processes and to utilize additional features. 
• Scheduled First Amendment Audit Training for April 12, 2022 
• Preparing for the upcoming Administrative Professionals Day Luncheon on April 27, 2022 

 
Safety   

• March City Hall Fire Extinguisher / Defibrillator Inspections. 
• March 3 – Committee Meeting for the North Carolina Freedom Festival 
• Compost & Water Reclamation safety visit 
• March 14 – John Street construction visit for water line break. 
• March 16 – Police Department meeting with Octavius and Roe O’Donnell concerning the structure 

damage to facility. 
• March 17 – Met with Woody at Police Department to look at water drainage grate installed wrong 

by contractors. 
• March 17 – Investigated an MVA on Spring Street involving a solid waste vehicle. 
• March 21 – Orientation Presenter for new hires at Goldsboro Event Center 
• March 22 – Met with Rick Sumner concerning stage placement for North Carolina Freedom 

Festival 
• March 24 – Teleconference call with Kurt Pfister production manager for Sister Hazel concerning 

the concert May 21. 
• March 25 – Investigated a MVA on Holly Street involving a solid waste vehicle. 
• March 29 – Safety and Accident Review Committee Meeting. Heard four cases involving MVA’s 
• Setting up more 30-minute safety briefings with departments. 
• March 31 – Met with Fire training chief about upcoming Trench/excavation class at PW. 
• Field safety with crews 
• North Carolina Department of Labor elevator inspections are being done in March 2022. 
• Daily office duties 



2 

 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  Health and Safety review sessions with Safety Officer regarding health beat/training sessions.  
Provided CPR and First Aid training for Public Works. There were 131 clinic visits this month. There were 
6 random Non-DOT drug screens, 0 random DOT and 2 breathalyzer (all negative) and 0 DOT post-accident 
drug screen this month.   
 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418          423 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113          113 

Total Employees 539 536 531          535 
Male  411 412 409          411 
Female 128 124 122          125 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hispanic or 
Latino) 

321 324 321          322 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188          191 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17          17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1          1 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4          4 
Vacancies  24 25 30          26 
Applications 308 179 386          291 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90          126 
New Hires  6 4 9          6 
Promotions 3 0 4          2 
Resignations 6 10 9          8 
Retirements  2 2 2          2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0          2 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6%          2.7% 
Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4          3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 
 

0 0          0 

FFCRA Leave  76 7 1          28 

Telework 11 11 11          11 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



3 

 
 
 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total Employment 569 566 562 562 557 554 550 550 544 537 534 

 
537 553 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18 19 21 26 23 22 27 24 20 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267 299 233 150 164 204 173 131 203 
Applicant Notices 214 203 167 66 71 177 94 140 106 196 17 

 
1 132 

 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4 3 2 8 1 3 1 9 3 

Resignations 1 2 3 3 6 6 7 8 6 8 3 4 5 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1.00 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 .27 
Turnover Rate  .18% .88

% 
.89% .53

% 
1.44

% 
1.08% 1.09

% 
1.45 1.10 1.49 .19 

 
.74 

 
.94% 

Vehicle Accidents 2 5 2 7 3 1 3 1 0 3 4 
 

2 3 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 4 2 3 5 4 3 0 0 0 0 0 2.1 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5 5 2 1 20 9 2 5 9 

Telework 27  28 25 23 13 12 11 11 11 11 11 11 17 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
March 2022 
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: April 13, 2022 
 

• Setup a third site for Disaster Recovery migration. 
• Prepared equipment for replacement of Servers and Storage. 
• Streamed/Recorded the City Council Retreat. 
• Presented for the Citizen’s Academy. 
• Upgraded video storage for security footage. 
• Updated security certificates for two City sites. 
• Completed IT Budget for FY 22-23. 
• Filled one CSA I position. 
• Scheduled additional CSA I interviews. 
• Updated SPEDE for GPD. 
• Repaired Public Works WiFi. 
• Installed Trend AV on MDTs for Police and Fire. 
• Repaired Padtrax issue with RMS. 
• Retrieved Tsunami footage for GPD review/analysis. 
• Attended NCLGISA Regional Meeting (2 staff). 
• Attended Nutanix Boot Camp (2 staff). 

 
2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430          387 1162 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466          360 1080 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487          495  

 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473 500 530 526 374 439 348 280 
 

475 5,698 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528 571 490 547 384 388 306 327 471 5,651 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421 350 390 369 359 410 
 

452 405 414  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Mar 2022 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 04/03/22 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for March totaled $5,355,800.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $43,408.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,885 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $2,105. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,220. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 654 inspections for the month.  During the month of March, nine (9) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 288 permits were issued for the month.    Seventy-nine (79) plan reviews 
were completed for March. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.8
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $1.4M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $42
Inspections 460 551 654 555
Permits Issued 258 281 288 276
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 61

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $6.4 $7.5 $4.9 $8.4 $7.7 $6.5 $4.8 $7.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $3.9 $4.3 $3.7 $5.7 $5.3 $4.7 $2.9 $5.2
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $3.1M $1.4M $1.M $480 $2.5M $1.7M $428 $1.3M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.5 $3.2 $1.1 $2.7 $2.4 $1.8 $2.0 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $38 $29 $26 $36 $45 $28 $24 $33.1
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 424 483 472 590 681 529 583 522
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 308 324 267 311 332 262 242 289
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 51 59 50 45 45 93 26 58



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT & GEC 
March 2022 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 4/11/2022 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
• March capacity unrestricted; masks no longer required. 
• March activity included 23 rental/use days, including 10 public performances. 
• March COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 3 days, 3 public perfs. 
• Repairs and Maintenance works in progress:  

Sound repairs (Foundation funded), Roof (under review), wheelchair lift (under review) 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

Expenses –$73,052:   Labor - $30,066 / Operations – $7,220 /Artist&Renter Payout – $35,766 
Revenues - $35,192:      Tickets – 32,216  / Rentals- $2717 / Concession- $259 
 

 
 

--------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 
• Transition from Paramount to GGC oversight of operation underway. 
• March capacity unrestricted; masks no longer required. 
• March activity consisted of 9 event rental days, including 4 non-revenue City events. 
• March cancellations/postponements due to COVID-19 & weather included 3 rental days. 
• Repairs and Maintenance in progress or under consideration:  

Landscaping, tree-trimming, and front garden improvements. Parking lot lighting improvements. 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
Expenses – $16,065: Labor - $4973 (includes vacation payout) / Operational – $11,092 
Revenues – $1130:            Rental Bldg. - $710 / Rental Amenities - $190 / F&B – $230 
City Use – $3020 Value of Non-revenue City use of facility - $3020 
 

 

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $53,123 $32,009 $38,135 $55,769 $47,860 $110,177 $69,919 $27,119 $73,052 $507,163 $56,351

Rev $2,881 $11,843 $11,014 $14,718 $46,585 $85,238 $67,668 $10,947 $35,192 $286,086 $31,787

Grants $0 $0 $76,235 $145,036 $110,636 $5,250 $0 $0 $0 $337,157

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $31,420 $29,780 $18,774 $23,883 $31,146 $49,123 $36,588 $26,876 $44,093 $52,183 $42,371 $91,817 $478,053 $39,838

Rev $1,218 <$633> $1,625 $635 $1,508 $2,260 $15,982 $4,697 $5,712 $8,874 $58,020 $69,591 $169,509 $14,126

21-Jul 21-Aug 21-Sep 21-Oct 21-Nov 21-Dec 22-Jan 22-Feb 22-Mar 22-Apr 22-May 22-Jun FY 22 Total Average

Exp $4,602 $10,442 $8,520 $15,505 $10,679 $11,547 $12,663 $8,556 $16,065 $98,579 $10,953

Rev $0 $5,673 $6,192 $9,203 $11,925 $4,331 $8,047 $4,597 $1,130 $51,098 $5,678

City $2,400 $0 $2,205 $4,550 $775 $3,775 $0 $4,145 $3,020 $20,870 $2,319

20-Jul 20-Aug 20-Sep 20-Oct 20-Nov 20-Dec 21-Jan 21-Feb 21-Mar 21-Apr 21-May 21-Jun FY 21 Total Average

Exp $12,499 $13,295 $16,383 $7,931 $6,727 $14,807 $8,153 $11,245 $13,874 $7,339 $9,469 $14,556 $136,278 $11,356

Rev $0 <$3,694> $541 $6,894 $6,122 $12,067 <$1,732> $4,695 $5,778 $3,737 $5,168 $3,765 $43,941 $3,662

City $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,925 $850 $0 $0 $775 $775 $750 $1,250 $6,325 $527



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
March - 2022 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 04/08/2022 

 
 

• Winter Youth Basketball League concluded in March 
 

• Indoor Soccer Program for Youth and Adults concluded in March 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff dyed the fountain on Center Street green for St. Patrick’s Day 
 

• Youth Spring Sports registration concluded this month with 848 participants for soccer and                   
435 participants for baseball/softball .. season starts in April 
 

• Several P&R staff attended the Women’s LeadHership Conference held March 16-18th in Durham, NC 
 

• Golf Course Maintenance Staff repaired fencing along property line  
 

• P&R staff provided materials to assist with a neighborhood greenway cleanup held on March 19th  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff dyed the fountain on Center Street blue on March 21st  
 

• P&R Director presented at New Hire Orientation held at the Goldsboro Event Center on March 21st  
 

• Annual Shad Fishing Tournament held on March 26th – 119 participants 
 

• Opening Ceremony and field events for the Wayne County Senior Games occurred at our Bryan MSCX on 
Wednesday, March 30th with several councilmembers in attendance 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff de-winterized the older park restrooms this month; all park restrooms and the 
restrooms at the HUB are now cleaned daily  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street, prepping for Spring planting 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff and Seasonal staff 

 



 

 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $1,910 $520 $720          $1,050 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530          $1,247 

Facility Usage 250 189 243          227 

Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294          $6,239 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $895 $295 $505          $565 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800          $1,840 

Facility Usage 1,595 1,565 1,565          1,5875 

Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911          $17,938 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518          $495 

Expenses $1,848 $0 $0          $616 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0          $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0          $0 

Facility Usage 95 119 152          122 

Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921          $5,793 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $105 $105 $105          $105 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0          $0 

Facility Usage 232 376 375          328 

Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874          $1,719 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338          $10,679 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $0 $0 $0          $0 

Facility Usage 10,673 14,935 23,858          16,489 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761          $18,129 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $16,137 $33,437 $57,813          $35,796 

Expenditures $31,184 $36,837 $42,071          $36,697 

Rounds of Golf 433 1,296 1,724          1151 

Net ($15,046) ($3,400) $15,741          ($902) 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0          $0 

Participation $0 0 0          $0 

Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110          $744 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $26,755 $55,247 $73,329          $12,944 

TOTAL EXPENSES $89,708 $83,976 $89,942          $21,969 

TOTAL REVENUE $155,331             

TOTAL EXPENSES $263,629             

 
 



 

**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in 
expenditures is loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of 
these costs are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860 $1,250 $810 $410 $120 $305 $270 $150 $879 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270 $750 $1,245 $170 $1,550 $1,350 $70 $1,035 $657 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294 405 455 172 249 358 259 252 272 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 $384 $1304 $12,189 $15,981 $5,095 $4,812 $5,042 $9,172 $5,039 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250 $2,110 $825 $140 $120 $85 $50 $120 $400 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100 $1,200 $538 $1193 $1,110 $750 $3,100 $1,200 $1,058 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475 1,478 1,793 867 1043 983 1,171 1,308 1,199 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586 $7,447 $20,580 $25,305 $14,427 $19,173 $16,232 $22,925 $12,510 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578 $578 $607 $578 $578 $705 $548 $578 $568 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $4041 $0 $0 $0 $1,989 $1,174 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $42 $0 $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5 31 $34 18 103 178 114 136 65 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0 $0 $461 $288 $2945 $5,523 $5,857 $8,599 $2,203 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897 $4,707 $7,690 $2284 $140 $1,168 $140 $140 $1,477 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $25 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608 2,245 1,176 1,251 448 525 268 302 702 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203 $13,483 $22,041 $17,647 $7,327 $762 $854 $1,992 $6,419 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185 $4,880 $9,056 $13,708 $1,755 $2,860 $21,090 $4,110 $7,920 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555 $480 $1,305 $0 0 $750 $650 $2,400 $766 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339 15,533 8,476 7,525 11,253 43,298 30,123 30,123 18,996 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191 $33,230 $23,614 $24,926 $17,977 $72,084 $21,726 $21,976 $25,399 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876 $54,559 $61,379 $59,850 $66.788 $62,129 $34,965 $53,716 $52,716 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,969 $36,825 $40,143 $54,594 $67,883 $32,255 $48,088 $50,243 $38,778 $38,890 $43,335 $43,281 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641 2,421 2,556 2,819 2,097 2,232 2,087 1752 1,960 

Net $4.235 -26,760 $16,788 $26,782 $18,282 -13,325 $29,124 $11,762 $16,545 $23,351 -3,925 $10,361 $13,895 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,666 $979 $170 $0 $475 $0 $0 $358 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0 153 0 44 0 50 30 6200 576 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110 $1,980 $1,538 $110 $110 $1,630 $110 $370 $520 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571 $73,260 $84,734 $78,503 $72,161 $69,902 $60,925 $63,449 $66,827 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $54,118 $56,712 $80,77, $98,069 $125,327 $112,612 $136,276 $98,014 $142,762 $88,711 $110,378 $96,545 

TOTAL REVENUE  $801,924            

TOTAL EXPENSES  $1,158,537            



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
March 2022 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  April 7, 2022 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

 
 
 

  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 3 0
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 6 1

Special Use 3 1 0 4 0
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 1 1 1 3 0
Staff Review 1 2 1 4 0

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 91 8

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 250 21

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 589 49

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
2021 

 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 4 4 1 0 1 10 1
Subdivison 6 3 2 0 0 2 13 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 0 3 0 1 3 4 0 2 0 2 2 17 1

Special Use 2 1 0 3 3 1 10 1

Historic District Commission
Commission 

Review
0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 0

Staff Review 1 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 1 0 3 2 11 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 1 36 68 43 33 58 37 35 19 0 330 41

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $1,420.00 $2,430 $2,190 $1,740 $3,025 $1,965 $1,770 $955 -$   $15,670 $1,959

Tagged 
Vehicles

25 15 12 21 23 25 11 24 15 1 0 22 194 16

Illegal Signs 
Removed

52 77 380 36 30 174 147 155 189 222 192 88 1742 145

Bags of Litter 
Picked Up 210 186 231 232 204 206 253 212 261 239 244 216 2694 225

*Adoption of 160D has allowed all Site Plans & Subdivisions to be 
reviewed at staff level no longer needing Planning/City Council 

review. Monthy report updated to reflect current process.

Planning Dept.

Code Enforcement 

*Adoption of 160D changed Conditional Use permits to Special Use 
permits. These were not previously reported. Monthy report 

updated to reflect current process.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
March 2022 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  April 5, 2022  
 
Total Part I Crime (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle Theft, 
and Arson) for March 2022 were 149, compared to 124 for March 2021. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $247,523 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $70,027 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 100 people and issued 263 citations during the month. There were 28 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 1 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1  2               3 1 
Rape 1 2  1                 4 1.3 
Robbery 1 2     6               9 3 
Aggravated Assault 11 12  20                  43 14.3 
Breaking & Entering 25 19  18                 62 21 
Larceny 92 86        95                273 91 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6  6 7                19 6.3 
Arson 0 1 0                  1 0.3 
TOTALS 136 129 149                  414 138.2 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total AVG 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 1 1  1  0  0 6 0.5 
Rape 3 0 1 2 1 0 1 0 0 2 1 1 12 1.0 
Robbery 7 3 2 1 8 3 5 4 1 5 0 1 40 3.3 
Aggravated Assault 10 11 10 24 12 13 15 18 16 9 18 8 164 13.6 
Breaking & Entering 26 19 18 30 25 34 21 23 15 12 16 17 256 21.3 
Larceny 88 70 87 83 114 90 90 116 99 96 92 119 1144 95.3 
Motor Vehicle Theft 8 9 5 7 11 10 7 7 12 7 6 8 97 8.1 
Arson 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3 0.3 
TOTALS 143 112 124 147 172 151 140 169 144 133 133 154 1722 143.4 

 

 
Revenue collected for March 2022 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

 104.00  
 Fingerprints   $      60.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $    250.00  
             Total     $ 414.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
March 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: April 11, 2022 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  WTP is fully staffed and all are certified. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing normal since September 

2021. January through April is our wet season. Higher flows are expected during this time, but 
currently for January, February, and March are unusually low considering the time of year. The 
average daily flow for March is 8.63-MGD. The yearly average flow at the WRF is 9.03-MG. This 
puts the City at 70% capacity versus 90% capacity that we received last year at this time. 

o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117, Little 
Cherry, and New Hope pump station bar screens, impacts from high flows from 2021. 

o Remote communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for 
an upgrade. Failed telemetry radios have delayed emergency response, but no violations 
have occurred during each event. Monies were approved with ARP funds to repair.  

o One uncertified operator is working towards certification.  
o Two Operator I positions open. 

Compost Facility 
• Six hundred and sixty-three cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in March 2021. 
• Dwight Tyndall retired on March 31st.  
• Compost Mechanic Position is open. 

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. The results for October are estimated, due to all the results are not in 
for the month. 
 

2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60          5.548 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63          9.03 

Compost 165 972 663          569 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619 6.066 6.149 5.872 5.854 5.660 5.70 5.64 5.981 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61 12.99 12.74 12.44 7.98 7.00 6.52 6.69 11.38 
Compost 297 109 733 1406 902 529 286 133 283 76 472 127 420 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
9.1 4.7 9.0 7.6
2.3 1.9 2.2 2.1
33 37 25 31.7
20 19 20 19.7
2 2 2 2.0
12 27 16 18.3

41 53 42 45.3
32 15 55.5 34.2
0 10 39.2 16.4

295 200 257 250.7
49$       48$       57$       51.3

1.1 0.9 0.990
20 38 29.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.513

4 5 4 4.3

0 36 23 19.7
65 51 116 77.3
78.2 156.1 177.2 137.2
0.14 0.00 3.00 1.046
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.133
6 2 2 3.3

4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 13.1 4.5 7.2 2.3 12.3 9 12.1 8.3
8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 2.0 1.0 2.4 15.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 4.0
17 27 22 22 21 17 20 24 26 37 35 24 24.3
18 11 13 27 14 13 17 18 18 21 9 10 15.8
9 4 6 8 4 3 1 2 6 2 3 6 4.5
18 14 12 28 34 27 18 26 22 18 16 24 21.4

52 45 44 42 40 41 46 47 35 52 46 51 45.1
0 0 60 127 95 86.1 98.2 98 144 77.8 43.6 16.5 70.5
0 10 41 94.6 85.4 149.6 126.5 122.9 121 56.2 0 0 67.3

294 288 286 263 243 248 310 280 198 257 224 215 258.8
48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       53$       65$       59$       52$       50$       49$       51$       52.0

0.9 0.9 1.1 1.1 0.9 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
97 82 89 94 81 97 58 38 12 7 20 58.04 61.2
0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5 1.0 0.6

11 1 8 4 7 4 6 5 5 7 2 3 5.3

0 5 30 31 26 19 6 8 11 10 6 14 13.8
83 65 39 65 18 34 57 39 23 45 30 74 47.7
175 81 120.8 178 117 135 137 125 101.8 76.6 92.9 107.1 120.6
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 3.05 0.00 0.82 0.00 0.20 0.46 0.00 2.2
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 14.02 0.18 1.17 9.45 7.25 0.00 0.00 5.0
1 3 2 4 5 6 9 2 2 3 3 3 3.6

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2022

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
March 2022
Prepared by:  Chad Edge
Date Prepared: 11 April, 2022

2021

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Multiple electrical, plumbing, structural, etc. repairs Citywide- Grounds crews have started mowing lots.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 13 after hour calls—total of 25.5 hours; Completed 133 work orders total.

Streets & Stormwater: Call duty responded to zero(0) after hour calls;  Repaired drainage box and replaced ~35 feet of 48 inch 
pipe in Handley Acres; Four employees attended "Management Techniques for Experienced Supervisors" through N
NCSU LTAP program.

**Solid Waste Refuse and Recycle tonnages were not available at time of report submittal. 



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
March 2022 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Joanna Ferrin and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared 4/7/22 
 

● Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of February by the TTO—552 e-inquiries. 

● Total hotel revenue generated in January was $1,640,969, which is up 18.6% YOY. March revenue not yet 

released. 

● For the month, TTO Facebook page had 135 new follows, reached 73,992 people and had 14,747 

engagements. Instagram page had 48 new followers, with 187 overall post interactions including likes, 

comments, saves and shares and reached 4,734 accounts.  

● The SJAFB tours had 25 attendees 

● Filming took place on March 11th for Video #1 – International Cuisine for the T&T Youtube branding 

series 

● Debut of Goldsboro-Wayne County’s featured episode of WRAL Out & About took place March 4th and can 

be viewed here: https://www.wral.com/out-and-about-tv-march-2022/20168868/  

● T&T collaborated with NC Pickle Festival to establish the inaugural NC Picklefest Pickleball Tournament. A 

tournament director from Raleigh, NC has joined the project to run the tournament on April 23 and April 

24. Registration details and information regarding the event can be found here: 

https://www.eventeny.com/events/applications/application/?id=855  

 

City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $ $ $ $679,712 $75,524 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $58,755 103,416 $65,157 $54,670 $61,336 $94,544 $75,710 $93,168 $906,897 $75,575 
 

https://www.wral.com/out-and-about-tv-march-2022/20168868/
https://www.eventeny.com/events/applications/application/?id=855


K

DEFERRED



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- _____ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS  
REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A-269 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 209 & 213 N. Georgia 

Avenue (NC Pin #2599677450, 2599677562, and 2599678507); and  
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, after receipt 

of an offer for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has conducted the upset bid process and approved the sale at the April 5, 2022 

Board meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in the amount of 

$6,000.00 (Six Thousand Dollars and no/100)  from Torwanna Coe. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 

1) The City Council declares the properties as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General Statute 

§160A-269. 
3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to convey the 

property to the Offeror. 
4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is transferred and 

recorded. 
 
This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this                                                    _____________ 

day of                                                                     , 2022. 
 
 

 
___________________________   
Mayor  

 
Attested by: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk    

 



TO: 

FROM: 

WAYNE COUNTY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 

WAYNE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

ANDREW NEAL, STAFF ATTORNEY .Afl) 

WAYNECOUNTY 
N O RTH C AR O LI N A 

Phone: (919) 705-1713 
Fax (919) 988·6495 

SUBJECT: SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY JOINTLY OWNED WITH THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO; 209 & 213 N. GEORGIA AVE., GOLDSBORO (PINS: 2599677450, 
2599677562,2599678507) 

DATE: 3/25/2022 

CC: CRAIG HONEYCUTT, COUNTY MANAGER 

The County and the City of Goldsboro jointly own the properties located at 209 and 213 
N. Georgia Ave., Goldsboro. The properties were obtained via tax foreclosure auction. The 
County has received an offer to purchase the properties pursuant to NCGS § 160A-269. 

209 & 213 N. Georgia Ave., Goldsboro (PINs: 2599677450,2599677562, 2599678507) 
Buyer: Torwanna Coe 
Sales Price: $6,000.00 
Combined Tax Value: $11,610.00 
Deposit: $300.00 (5% of purchase price) 

If the offer is approved by the Board of Commissioners, the offer will be advertised in the 
News-Argus and upset bids will be accepted for 10 days. Once upset bidding is complete, the 
offer will be sent to the Goldsboro City Council for approval. All adjoining property owners have 
been notified of the offer and the procedure for submitting an upset bid. Enclosed please find 
proposed the Resolution, Public Notice, Tax Card, and GIS map. 

·nn: G< >< )J) l.lrJ:. <·IIH >WN I IH~J:. 

j r \ ! ( 1\ ~ 1 ' 
r I I f)..,:", .i. I i ~ ~; r., .. ~, 



NORTH CAROLINA 

WAYNE COUNTY 

RESOLUTION #2022-_LS_: A RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS REAL 
PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING ITS SALE 

WHEREAS, the County has acquired a property interest in the properties located at 209 
and 213 N. Georgia Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina, having parcel identification numbers of 
2599677450, 2599677562, and 2599678507 and being more particularly described in the deeds 
recorded in Deed Book 3190, Page 642 and Deed Book 3257, Page 139 in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for Wayne County ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the County obtained an interest in this property through tax foreclosure 
proceedings; and 

WHEREAS, the Staff Attorney and County Manager have recommended that this property 
be declared surplus and sold, following a careful review by the Staff Attorney and the Facilities 
Services Director that determined the County has no use for these properties; and 

WHEREAS, NCGS § 160A-269 permits the County to sell property by upset bid, after 
receipt of an offer for the property; and 

WHEREAS, the County has received an offer to purchase the properties described above, 
in the amount of $6,000, submitted by Torwanna Cole; and 

WHEREAS, Torwanna Cole has paid the required fi ve percent (5%) deposit on its offer; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Wayne County Board of 
Commissioners that: 

I. The Board of Commissioners declares the property described above surplus and authorizes 
the sale of the Property through upset bid procedure of North Carol ina General Statute 
§160A-269. 

2. A notice ofthe proposed sale shall be published which shall describe the propet1y and the 
amount of the offer and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

3. Any person may submit an upset bid to the Clerk to the Board within I 0 days after the 
notice of sale is published. Once a qualifying higher bid has been received. that bid wi ll 
become the new otTer. 

4. If a qualifying higher bid is received. new notice of upset bid shal l be published. and shal l 
continue to do so until a I 0-day peri od has passed without any qualifying upset bid having 
been received. At that time. the amount of the tina I high bid shall be reported to the Board 
of C 0111111 iss ioners. 



5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent 
(10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that 
offer. 

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five 
percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier's check, or certified 
check. The County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted and will return the 
deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received. The county will 
return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing. 

7. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the 
final high bid is accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

8. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above 
is hereby accepted. The appropriate County officials are authorized to refer the matter to 
the City of Goldsboro by the City Council and, pending approval by said body, execute the 
instruments necessary to convey the property to Torwanna Coe. 

Passed and adopted this the 5th day of April, 2022. 

Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board 

aughtery, C ai 
ayne County Board 



PUBLIC NOTICE 
SALE OF COUNTY PROPERTY 

An offer of $6,000.00 has been submitted for the purchase of certain property owned by 
the County of Wayne located at 209 and 213 N. Georgia Ave., Goldsboro, NC (Wayne County 
PINs 2599677450, 2599677562, and 2599678507) more particularly described as follows: 

209 N. Georgia Ave .. Goldsboro. NC (PIN: 2599677450) 
COMMENCING at an iron stake at the Northwest intersectional comer of Mulberry Street 
and Georgia Avenue and runs thence with Georgia Avenue N. 22 degrees 41 minutes E. 
220.00 feet to an iron stake, the point of beginning; thence from said point of beginning N. 
67 degrees 19 minutes W. 133.00 feet to an iron stake; thence N. 22 degrees 413 minutes 
E. 10.00 feet to an iron stake; thence North 67 degrees 19 minutes W. 55.00 feet to an iront 
stake; thence North 22 degrees 41 minutes E. 55.00 minutes to an iron stake in the line of 
Lot No. 3; thence with the line of Lot No. 3, S. 67 degrees 19 minutes E. 188.00 feet to an 
iron stake found in the western right of way of Georgia Avenue; thence with Georgia 
Avenue S. 22 degrees 41 minutes W. 65 feet to the beginning. 

213 N. Georgia Ave. Goldsboro. NC (PINs: 2599677562 & 2599678507) 
BEING the house and lot together with the vacant lot known and identified as 213 North 
Georgia Avenue and being Lots I and 2 of Block 21 of the F.K. Borden Subdivision as 
shown on a plat recorded in Plat Cabinet B, Slide 197 in the Wayne County Registry. And 
being those same lots or parcels of land conveyed to Ronyar, LLC by deed recorded in 
Book 1652 at Page 403 of the Wayne County Registry. 

Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with 
their offer and the required deposit to the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, PO Box 227, 
Goldsboro, NC 27533 by 5:00 P.M. on April 19, 2022. At that time the Clerk to the Board shall 
open the bids, if any, and the highest qualifying bid will become the new offer. If there is more 
than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new otTer. 

A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing otTer at least I 0% of the first $1,000 
and 5% of the remainder. A qualifying bid must raise the existing offer to an amount not less than 
$6.350.00. 

A qualifying higher bid must be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of live percent 
(5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash. cashier's check, or certified check. The County 
will return the deposit on any bid not accepted and will return the deposit on an offer subject to 
upset if a qualifying higher bid is received. If no other bids are made the original otTer to purchase 
of$6,000.00 will be accepted. 

Further information may be obtained at the Wayne County Staff Attorney's Oftice, 100 S. 
Ormond Ave .. Goldsboro. NC or by telephone at (919) 705-1971 during normal business hours. 

Andrew J. Neal 
Wayne County Staff Attorney 



PO Box 227 
Goldsboro, NC 27533 
(919) 705-1971 
Run date: April 9, 2022 



Wayne 
Printed March 21, 2022 

See Below for Disclaimer 



CITY OF 

CITY- GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) 
N GEORGIA AVE 

CARD NO. 1 of 1 

UNIQ ID 46985 
1D NO: 12000069006004 



of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled from recorded deeds, 
public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public p rimary infonmation sources should be consulted for verification of the data 
information. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibil ity for the information contained herein. By 

and understand the disclaimer. 



CITY· GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) 
GEORGIA AVE 

STORIES: 

CARD NO. 1 of 1 
1.000 LT 

UNIQ ID 46986 
ID NO: 12000069006002 

SRC= 



of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled f rom recorded deeds, 
public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the data 
infomnation. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibility for the information contained herein. By 

and understand the disclaimer. 



~YNECOUNTY '" 
WAYNE_COUN:rv & CITY OF GOLDSBORO I Noto" 2599678507 

UNIQ ID 46988 
ID NO: 12000069006001 

Reval. CITY- GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) CARD NO. 1 of 1 
Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2022 GEORGIA AVE ~o~2LT SRC= 
I lby60on~WEST C-01 EX-2AT- LAST ACTION 20170729 

'OF VALUE 

~UE _L _I ;,:~ louAL ~~~ L I 

~~~~UALITY INDEX 
TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'VALUE- CARD 

~E·CARD 

+ili STORIES: !-~_E- CARD 

I ~AL~~: ~A~~-
<T USE VALUE- I 

3,1~ tg~:~ ~:~~:. 'VALUE- PARCiL 

VALUE : OBXFVALUE 

~~~~VALUE 3,16~ PR'ESENi--usE VALUE 

3,lli 

~=~clltD ~DA""E DEED 
~/U ~/1 

INDICATE SALES 
;Mo YR TYPE PR1CE 

"'"' 040, !1; ~~~~ ~~ ~ I~ 
3500~ 

I i_ m~ ~~ ~ : 
I ~0 :~:; i ~: ~~gg~ 

TED AREA 

!.I.J ~L 
_I J J I ~~~~ I 0~~.;' I, .r..l, ,J ~!~ L I I A':~."p I % _I OB/XF ::~uRE 

~ I 
~ PTHER TOTAL 

..§TUSEAND lc"::,5~e lz~
0N~~ ~~~~ ~ ~~~~ I;~~ r~~ I AC -LC TO OT p ... ~~n UNITS 1~: TOTAL UA~;u:~~gE LAND ,.~~~ DEPn TYPE ADlST VALUE 

0100 1 o1oo 1-5 60 210 2 10.7500 65.0( 60.00( FF 0.810 "·" 31" 
TAL ~DATA 3,16( 

TOTAL I DATA 



From: Carol Bowden
To: Catherine Gwynn; Andrew Neal
Subject: Surplus Property Sale (Georgia Avenue)
Date: Wednesday, April 6, 2022 9:20:36 AM
Attachments: Surplus Prop Sale Georgia Ave.pdf

CAUTION: External Email. Be careful when clicking links or opening attachments.

Good morning Catherine,
 
Please find attached the signed resolution and accompanying paperwork for the Sale of Surplus
Property on Georgia Avenue.  The Board approved the sale last night.
 
Thank you,
Carol Bowden, NCCCC, CMC
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners
Assistant to the County Manager
carol.bowden@waynegov.com
919-731-1445
 

mailto:Carol.Bowden@waynegov.com
mailto:CGwynn@goldsboronc.gov
mailto:andrew.neal@waynegov.com
mailto:carol.bowden@waynegov.com



TO: 


FROM: 


WAYNE COUNTY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 


WAYNE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


ANDREW NEAL, STAFF ATTORNEY .Afl) 


WAYNECOUNTY 
N O RTH C AR O LI N A 


Phone: (919) 705-1713 
Fax (919) 988·6495 


SUBJECT: SALE OF SURPLUS PROPERTY JOINTLY OWNED WITH THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO; 209 & 213 N. GEORGIA AVE., GOLDSBORO (PINS: 2599677450, 
2599677562,2599678507) 


DATE: 3/25/2022 


CC: CRAIG HONEYCUTT, COUNTY MANAGER 


The County and the City of Goldsboro jointly own the properties located at 209 and 213 
N. Georgia Ave., Goldsboro. The properties were obtained via tax foreclosure auction. The 
County has received an offer to purchase the properties pursuant to NCGS § 160A-269. 


209 & 213 N. Georgia Ave., Goldsboro (PINs: 2599677450,2599677562, 2599678507) 
Buyer: Torwanna Coe 
Sales Price: $6,000.00 
Combined Tax Value: $11,610.00 
Deposit: $300.00 (5% of purchase price) 


If the offer is approved by the Board of Commissioners, the offer will be advertised in the 
News-Argus and upset bids will be accepted for 10 days. Once upset bidding is complete, the 
offer will be sent to the Goldsboro City Council for approval. All adjoining property owners have 
been notified of the offer and the procedure for submitting an upset bid. Enclosed please find 
proposed the Resolution, Public Notice, Tax Card, and GIS map. 


·nn: G< >< )J) l.lrJ:. <·IIH >WN I IH~J:. 


j r \ ! ( 1\ ~ 1 ' 
r I I f)..,:", .i. I i ~ ~; r., .. ~, 







NORTH CAROLINA 


WAYNE COUNTY 


RESOLUTION #2022-_LS_: A RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS REAL 
PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING ITS SALE 


WHEREAS, the County has acquired a property interest in the properties located at 209 
and 213 N. Georgia Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina, having parcel identification numbers of 
2599677450, 2599677562, and 2599678507 and being more particularly described in the deeds 
recorded in Deed Book 3190, Page 642 and Deed Book 3257, Page 139 in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for Wayne County ("Property"); and 


WHEREAS, the County obtained an interest in this property through tax foreclosure 
proceedings; and 


WHEREAS, the Staff Attorney and County Manager have recommended that this property 
be declared surplus and sold, following a careful review by the Staff Attorney and the Facilities 
Services Director that determined the County has no use for these properties; and 


WHEREAS, NCGS § 160A-269 permits the County to sell property by upset bid, after 
receipt of an offer for the property; and 


WHEREAS, the County has received an offer to purchase the properties described above, 
in the amount of $6,000, submitted by Torwanna Cole; and 


WHEREAS, Torwanna Cole has paid the required fi ve percent (5%) deposit on its offer; 


NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Wayne County Board of 
Commissioners that: 


I. The Board of Commissioners declares the property described above surplus and authorizes 
the sale of the Property through upset bid procedure of North Carol ina General Statute 
§160A-269. 


2. A notice ofthe proposed sale shall be published which shall describe the propet1y and the 
amount of the offer and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 


3. Any person may submit an upset bid to the Clerk to the Board within I 0 days after the 
notice of sale is published. Once a qualifying higher bid has been received. that bid wi ll 
become the new otTer. 


4. If a qualifying higher bid is received. new notice of upset bid shal l be published. and shal l 
continue to do so until a I 0-day peri od has passed without any qualifying upset bid having 
been received. At that time. the amount of the tina I high bid shall be reported to the Board 
of C 0111111 iss ioners. 







5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent 
(10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that 
offer. 


6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five 
percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier's check, or certified 
check. The County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted and will return the 
deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received. The county will 
return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing. 


7. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the 
final high bid is accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 


8. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above 
is hereby accepted. The appropriate County officials are authorized to refer the matter to 
the City of Goldsboro by the City Council and, pending approval by said body, execute the 
instruments necessary to convey the property to Torwanna Coe. 


Passed and adopted this the 5th day of April, 2022. 


Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board 


aughtery, C ai 
ayne County Board 







PUBLIC NOTICE 
SALE OF COUNTY PROPERTY 


An offer of $6,000.00 has been submitted for the purchase of certain property owned by 
the County of Wayne located at 209 and 213 N. Georgia Ave., Goldsboro, NC (Wayne County 
PINs 2599677450, 2599677562, and 2599678507) more particularly described as follows: 


209 N. Georgia Ave .. Goldsboro. NC (PIN: 2599677450) 
COMMENCING at an iron stake at the Northwest intersectional comer of Mulberry Street 
and Georgia Avenue and runs thence with Georgia Avenue N. 22 degrees 41 minutes E. 
220.00 feet to an iron stake, the point of beginning; thence from said point of beginning N. 
67 degrees 19 minutes W. 133.00 feet to an iron stake; thence N. 22 degrees 413 minutes 
E. 10.00 feet to an iron stake; thence North 67 degrees 19 minutes W. 55.00 feet to an iront 
stake; thence North 22 degrees 41 minutes E. 55.00 minutes to an iron stake in the line of 
Lot No. 3; thence with the line of Lot No. 3, S. 67 degrees 19 minutes E. 188.00 feet to an 
iron stake found in the western right of way of Georgia Avenue; thence with Georgia 
Avenue S. 22 degrees 41 minutes W. 65 feet to the beginning. 


213 N. Georgia Ave. Goldsboro. NC (PINs: 2599677562 & 2599678507) 
BEING the house and lot together with the vacant lot known and identified as 213 North 
Georgia Avenue and being Lots I and 2 of Block 21 of the F.K. Borden Subdivision as 
shown on a plat recorded in Plat Cabinet B, Slide 197 in the Wayne County Registry. And 
being those same lots or parcels of land conveyed to Ronyar, LLC by deed recorded in 
Book 1652 at Page 403 of the Wayne County Registry. 


Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with 
their offer and the required deposit to the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, PO Box 227, 
Goldsboro, NC 27533 by 5:00 P.M. on April 19, 2022. At that time the Clerk to the Board shall 
open the bids, if any, and the highest qualifying bid will become the new offer. If there is more 
than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the new otTer. 


A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing otTer at least I 0% of the first $1,000 
and 5% of the remainder. A qualifying bid must raise the existing offer to an amount not less than 
$6.350.00. 


A qualifying higher bid must be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of live percent 
(5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash. cashier's check, or certified check. The County 
will return the deposit on any bid not accepted and will return the deposit on an offer subject to 
upset if a qualifying higher bid is received. If no other bids are made the original otTer to purchase 
of$6,000.00 will be accepted. 


Further information may be obtained at the Wayne County Staff Attorney's Oftice, 100 S. 
Ormond Ave .. Goldsboro. NC or by telephone at (919) 705-1971 during normal business hours. 


Andrew J. Neal 
Wayne County Staff Attorney 







PO Box 227 
Goldsboro, NC 27533 
(919) 705-1971 
Run date: April 9, 2022 







Wayne 
Printed March 21, 2022 


See Below for Disclaimer 







CITY OF 


CITY- GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) 
N GEORGIA AVE 


CARD NO. 1 of 1 


UNIQ ID 46985 
1D NO: 12000069006004 







of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled from recorded deeds, 
public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public p rimary infonmation sources should be consulted for verification of the data 
information. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibil ity for the information contained herein. By 


and understand the disclaimer. 







CITY· GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) 
GEORGIA AVE 


STORIES: 


CARD NO. 1 of 1 
1.000 LT 


UNIQ ID 46986 
ID NO: 12000069006002 


SRC= 







of the GIS information/data contained in this web mapping application are hereby notified that the information was compiled f rom recorded deeds, 
public records and data. Users are notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification of the data 
infomnation. The County of Wayne and the mapping companies or other entities assume no legal responsibility for the information contained herein. By 


and understand the disclaimer. 







~YNECOUNTY '" 
WAYNE_COUN:rv & CITY OF GOLDSBORO I Noto" 2599678507 


UNIQ ID 46988 
ID NO: 12000069006001 


Reval. CITY- GOLDSBORO (100), COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100) CARD NO. 1 of 1 
Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2022 GEORGIA AVE ~o~2LT SRC= 
I lby60on~WEST C-01 EX-2AT- LAST ACTION 20170729 


'OF VALUE 


~UE _L _I ;,:~ louAL ~~~ L I 


~~~~UALITY INDEX 
TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 'VALUE- CARD 


~E·CARD 


+ili STORIES: !-~_E- CARD 


I ~AL~~: ~A~~-
<T USE VALUE- I 


3,1~ tg~:~ ~:~~:. 'VALUE- PARCiL 


VALUE : OBXFVALUE 


~~~~VALUE 3,16~ PR'ESENi--usE VALUE 


3,lli 


~=~clltD ~DA""E DEED 
~/U ~/1 


INDICATE SALES 
;Mo YR TYPE PR1CE 


"'"' 040, !1; ~~~~ ~~ ~ I~ 
3500~ 


I i_ m~ ~~ ~ : 
I ~0 :~:; i ~: ~~gg~ 


TED AREA 


!.I.J ~L 
_I J J I ~~~~ I 0~~.;' I, .r..l, ,J ~!~ L I I A':~."p I % _I OB/XF ::~uRE 


~ I 
~ PTHER TOTAL 


..§TUSEAND lc"::,5~e lz~
0N~~ ~~~~ ~ ~~~~ I;~~ r~~ I AC -LC TO OT p ... ~~n UNITS 1~: TOTAL UA~;u:~~gE LAND ,.~~~ DEPn TYPE ADlST VALUE 


0100 1 o1oo 1-5 60 210 2 10.7500 65.0( 60.00( FF 0.810 "·" 31" 
TAL ~DATA 3,16( 


TOTAL I DATA 






	Agenda 04-18-22 - Revised 2
	Item A - Minutes 4-4-22
	Item C - National Volunteer Week 2022
	Item D - Community College Month 2022
	Item E - Fair Housing Month 2022
	Item F - SU-2-22
	Item G - SU -3-22
	Item H - Z-5-22
	Item I - WCDA
	Item J - Contiguous Annex-Magnolia
	Item K - Agenda 2022-04-18 Surplus Concurrence 209 213 N Georgia (Coe)
	Agenda Memo 2022-04-18 Concur Sale 209 213 NN Georgia Ave  (Coe)_0
	RESOL Concurrence Sale 209 213 NN Georgia Ave (Coe) 04-18-22_0
	Surplus Prop Sale Georgia Ave
	Email 2022-04-06 Carol Bowden - Surplus Property Sale (Georgia Avenue)

	Item L - Agenda 2022-04-18 C2101 CDBG SRF Amendment
	Agenda Memo C2101 CDBG 2022-04-18
	ORDIN C2101 CDBG 2022-04-18
	FY21-CDBG-B21MC370019 GOLDSBORO
	FY21-HOME-M21MC370209 GOLDSBORO
	CDBG-CV Round 3 Grant Agreement-City of Goldsboro
	FY21-HOME-ARP-M21MP370209 GOLDSBORO-SIGNED AGREEMENT 9-23-2021

	Item M - Agenda 2022-04-17 Operating Budget Amend
	Agenda Oper Amend 2022-04-18_0
	ORDINANCE FY22 Operating Amend 2022-04-18_0

	Item N - Agenda 2022-04-18 Withdraw 211 S Slocumb (Olliver)
	Agenda Memo 2022-04-18 Withdraw Olliver (211 S Slocumb)_0
	Resolution Withdrawing COG 211 S. Slocumb St (Olliver)_0
	RES 2020-44 2020-07-13 Upset Bid 211 S Slocumb St-

	Item O - DDD Lease
	Item P - ARPA Funding-Engineering
	Item Q - HOME -ARP
	Item R - Center Street Jam 2022
	Item S - DillardGoldsboro Alumni
	Item T - Jamz Out Juneteenth 2022
	Item U - NCFF
	Agenda Memo Freedom Fest - Temporary Street Closure
	2022 NCFF Street Closure Application_with attachments_small-updated
	Binder1.pdf
	2022 NCFF Street Closure Application_with attachments.pdf
	2021 NCFF Street Closures.pdf
	Type of Event: (please check all that apply)
	Address:            U______
	For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- FORMATION AREA LOCATION:   U_______
	For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnivals- STARTING POINT:   U________
	For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- ENDING POINT:        U______U
	This form must be completed, signed and returned with the completed application.

	DSC_0417 (2)
	DSC_0450 (2)
	signs (2)

	Parking Notice Signs_NCFF 2022

	2022 NCFF Site Map-02
	NCFF 22 AERIAL SITE


	Item V - Wayco Takeover 2022
	Item W - WC Crime Stoppers Chase 2022
	Item X - Departmental Monthly Reports
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations Monthly Report-March 2022
	Community Relations Monthly Report Addendum-March 2022
	Budget Transfers Summary FY22 2022-03 MAR.pdf
	Transfer Summary Mar

	Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report FY22 2022-03 MAR.pdf
	Grants 2022-03 Mar

	Cash & Investment FY2022-09 Mar.pdf
	03-31-22





